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“Our manufacturing initiatives produced dramatic improvements in 

cycle time, inventory management, and quality in 1998. ANADIGICS 

is focused on becoming even more competitive with the opening of 

our new 6-inch wafer Fab in 1999, which will further strengthen 

our manufacturing control and flexibility.”

—BRUCE DIAMOND

Sr. V i ce  Pres ident , Operat ions

“In 1998, ANADIGICS’ Cable & Broadcast business achieved its third

consecutive year of revenue growth in excess of 30%. As the Internet 

drives the move toward high-speed two-way communication and digital

cable advances to interactive functions, ANADIGICS is developing 

products to power integrated cable, telecommunications, and data

communications services.”
—RON MICHELS

Vice  Pres ident , Cab le  and Broadcas t

“During 1998, when data communications traffic exceeded voice traffic for

the first time, ANADIGICS introduced several integrated circuit products

that play into the demand for high-speed, high-volume networking

technology. The concept of global communications is changing dramatically,

and it’s very exciting to have a role in bringing that concept to reality.”

—PHIL WALLACE

Vice  Pres ident , F iber

“Working with wireless industry leaders, ANADIGICS has the opportunity

to work directly with the companies that are designing the next generation

of wireless products. To make the most of that opportunity, we rounded

our portfolio with 3 volt products and focused on developing modules that

combine multiple technological components within a single unit and building

the technology to support our product portfolio.”

—BARAK MAOZ

Vice  Pres ident , Wire less
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F I N A N C I A L

H I G H L I G H T S

1997
Net Sales
$103 million

1998
Net Sales
$86 million

1996
Net Sales 
$69 million

1

Selected Financial Data
Years Ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share data) 1996 1997 1998

Net sales $68,864 $102,536 $ 86,075

Operating income/(loss) $ 9,735 $ 17,539 $(19,029)

Net income/(loss) $11,991 $ 15,329 $ (9,558)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share $ 0.93 $ 1.02 $ (0.65)

Weighted average common and

dilutive securities outstanding 12,908 15,064 14,724

Research and development expense $12,036 $ 16,765 $ 18,824

Purchase of capital equipment $16,444 $ 52,105 $ 24,607



On September 24, 1998, ANADIGICS announced that Dr. Bami Bastani had been named the

Company’s new Chief Executive Off icer and that Ron Rosenzweig would devote himself full-time to his

responsibilities as Chairman of the Board. We are fortunate to have both these executives lead our Company

and are pleased to present their thoughts and perspectives in this year’s letter to our shareholders.

D E A R  S H A R E H O L D E R S : Every company, no matter how successful, at times faces

uncommon challenges. Those with true leadership potential are distinguished by how well and how

quickly they rise to those challenges, as ANADIGICS did in 1998.

It was not an easy year. After three years of growth capped by record sales and earnings 

in 1997, it became evident that our wireless market would decline. But the decline also gave us a

blueprint for action in 1998 and beyond: we would have to address a range of issues, from increased

competition to reduced product life cycles, to regain our position as a leading supplier of wireless

devices. We were confident we could capitalize on our considerable strengths in Cable & Broadcast

and Fiber Optics, two application areas in which we experienced strong growth  in 1998.

Cable & Broadcast results were very impressive for the third consecutive year, with revenue

increasing 36% over 1997. Our Fiber Optics products also performed very well, with a 53% increase

over 1997 revenue. Wireless revenue declined significantly, but despite the disappointing results in

this market, the increasing balance of revenue generated by our three application areas offers

ANADIGICS another source of strength going forward.

1998 brought many highlights along with its challenges. We made significant new investments in

our manufacturing infrastructure, which resulted in meaningful improvements in cycle time and yield.

Our commitment to manufacturing excellence will continue as we bring our state-of-the-art six-inch

fabrication facility on-line (pictured above). All three groups introduced new products that set the

stage for our participation in the coming fusion of voice, data, and broadcast communications. We

worked to strengthen our relationships and maintain our long-standing partnerships with the indus-

try leaders who are our valued customers. And just as the communications revolution added new

voices to the global exchange of information, we added new voices to our management team.

Following a year-long search, Dr. Bami Bastani joined ANADIGICS as President and Chief

Executive Officer in October, allowing Ron Rosenzweig to devote himself full-time to the demands of

the office of Chairman of the Board of Directors. Dr. Bastani brings to ANADIGICS a history of par-

ticipation in the development of industry innovations and experience in overseeing global, billion-dollar

manufacturing operations. He was chosen for his exceptional technological background and record of

success in executive positions with industry leaders Fujitsu, National Semiconductor and Intel.

Bruce Diamond, who joined us in late 1997 as Senior Vice President, Operations, led his team’s

manufacturing initiatives which are paving the way for ANADIGICS’ acceleration from 4-inch to 6-inch
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wafer manufacturing in late 1999. We presently expect that qualifications of Fab 2 will begin in the

second quarter, and the process of closing Fab 1 will begin in the fourth quarter. By bringing 6-inch

wafer manufacturing on line significantly ahead of our original schedule, we estimate that we will gener-

ate a significant improvement in productivity over 4-inch manufacturing.

We believe our new Fab will establish ANADIGICS as a Company with a world-class manufac-

turing infrastructure. Equally important, we believe that the new Fab will give us the capacity to grow

from our current revenue run rate to a significantly higher annual run rate and the Fab floor space to

increase capacity even more with additional investment .

We emerged from 1998 with a clearer focus on our ability to apply our core competencies in

high performance GaAs technology and analog RF design to the future of global communications.

With the Internet and mobility driving consumer expectations of fiber, cable, and wireless products,

the remarkable number of synergies among our greatest strengths and the market’s greatest

demands are becoming more and more apparent . As a Company with an established presence in the

wireless, fiber, and cable markets, ANADIGICS occupies a unique niche in the industry.

We devoted much of 1998 to responding to changes in the markets we serve. We now look

forward to seeing how those markets respond to the changes in ANADIGICS. Looking ahead, we

believe that we are poised to continue our operating improvement throughout 1999, although the

impact of our actions and strategies may not be felt fully until the fourth quarter.

We know 1999 will present us with new challenges, but with the support of our employees, 

customers, and shareholders, we approach those challenges with renewed confidence in our

Company’s promise and potential. Thank you for your partnership with us in the past and your belief

in the future we share.

Sincerely yours,

B A M I  B A S TA N I RO N  RO S E N Z W E I G
President and Chairman of the Board

Chief Executive Off icer
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RO N A L D  RO S E N Z W E I G
Chairman of the Board

B A M I  B A S TA N I
President & Chief Executive Off icer
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The world is speeding toward a time when your cable box will link you not just to television 

programming, but to interactive financial services, Internet access, and that weekly Sunday afternoon

phone call to Mom. It’s not science fiction—it’s the way you’ll expect to communicate within just a

few years. And ANADIGICS is at work now to meet those expectations. In fact, we devoted much

of 1998 to designing technology that will help integrate all the components of 21st-century global

communications.

This was another year of success for cable & broadcast products at ANADIGICS. We sampled

our latest generation 860 MHz Upconverter IC for 256 QAM digital CATV tuners. This chip operates

from a single 5 Volt supply and is fully MCNS (Multimedia Cable Network System) and DOCSIS

(Data Over Cable Service Interface Specification) compliant .

Fabricated entirely in GaAs, the 256 QAM digital-compatible MMIC (Microwave Monolithic

Integrated Circuit) provides most front-end functions of a CATV tuner, thereby replacing some 30

discrete components found in a conventional tuner design. This paves the way for a low-cost tuner that

handles both analog and digital modulation and is equally suitable for use in next-generation set-top

boxes, cable modems and digital TVs.

Our new reverse amplifier/attenuator

meets the need for a variable gain block in

cable modems. It offers a high-perform-

ance, low-distortion design and is compat-

ible with the leading cable modem design processing chip set’s transmitter por tion. This reverse

amplifier is designed into General Instruments’ digital set-tops and is recommended by Cisco for its

Global Alliance partners.

We also introduced our new 24 Volt distribution amplifier to make it easier for our infra-

structure customers to use our line-amps, which deliver superior distortion performance and are

more cost-effective than present hybrid designs.

As we continued to align our cable & broadcast product development with the next wave of

industry drivers in 1998, we discontinued the majority of our work within the DBS product line. This

decision reflects our judgment, after careful consideration, that DBS no longer offers the level of

growth available to us in our current areas of focus.

During 1998, ANADIGICS was designed into every set-top box, both analog and digital, 

manufactured by General Instrument, which commands a majority of that market . The three 

manufacturers who dominate the cable modem market also rely on ANADIGICS technology. Our

focus for the year ahead will be on continuing to move our products’ level of integration forward. This

will advance us toward our ultimate goal of creating IC modules that provide the total integrated

solutions our customers need to take their products to the next level and beyond.

4
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The infrastructure of the Internet, which has capabilities that extend well beyond the World

Wide Web, is making it possible to move information in ways never before imagined. In 1998, Gigabit

Ethernet technology advances accelerated the speed at which data, Internet and other traffic moves.

As demand for Gigabit Ethernet and Fibre Channel products increased during 1998, ANADIGICS saw

new success in fiber optics products with the sale of our Integrated Pre-amp and Detectors (IPDs).

The Company’s sales of telecom Transimpedance Amplifiers (TIAs) rose 20% during 1998, 

driven by strong demand for 662 Mbps and 2.5 Gbps products. At these data rates, our analog 

GaAs MESFET process reduces noise and delivers a significant performance advantage over other GaAs

and silicon technologies. The patented designs in these devices helped to establish ANADIGICS as

the TIA market leader.

We also experienced success during 1998 with TIA products in DWDM (dense wavelength 

division multiplexing), which makes it possible to send multiple light frequencies down a single fiber.

Here, again, ANADIGICS products played into emerging market trends as demand grew for both

DWDM and traditional TDM (time division multiplexing) systems.

ANADIGICS’ growth in Fiber Optics during 1998 was fueled in part by our entry into the Gigabit

Ethernet markets with MSM-TIA and PIN-TIA IPD products. In response to the growing need for high-

speed data communications, we introduced our first single chip GaAs optoelectronic integrated circuit .

This innovation, which integrates a photodetector and transimpedance amplifier, offers significant 

savings in both cost and board space and was very well received.
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FIBER OPTIC IC’s ,  such as th is  MSM-TIA,  a re the backbone

of g loba l  te lecommunicat ions .  The tremendous growth of  the

Internet i s  dr iv ing g loba l  demand for broader bandwidths .   
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Of course, the global communications revolution isn’t limited to what kind of information is

being transmitted. An equally exciting development is where those transmissions are going.

Increasingly, the answer is everywhere—and the more information transfer is unplugged, the more its

full power is unleashed.

During 1998, cellular phone sales exceeded sales of cars, televisions, or personal computers. 

In 1999, cellular sales are expected to outpace stationary phone sales for the first time. Industry 

forecasts project that there will be over 750 million cell phones in operation in 2003, by which time 

wireless data communications, video conferencing, and Internet access will be commonplace. And

ANADIGICS’ wireless products

are being selected by the industry

leaders who are developing the

products that will put all that

communications power in the

palm of your hand.

Our Wireless applications area achieved several important accomplishments, many of which

were among the year’s highlights. We continued our leadership in the production of dual band ampli-

fiers for Ericsson’s first-generation dual band phones and began our transition to the multi-platform

development that will take our technology to the next frontier of wireless communications.

We introduced the first four members of our new family of 3 volt GaAs power amplifiers, which

deliver excellent power added efficiency, and savings in cost and circuit board space. These products

enable cellular handset designers to develop smaller, lighter phones with very low power consumption.

The year’s highlights included our demonstration of the first fully-matched power amplifier module,

which utilizes a new packaging process that combines multiple components within a single unit . With

its higher levels of product integration and enhanced ease of use, module technology opens the door

to the incorporation of our components into products manufactured by a broader customer base.

As we announced in December 1998, we also became an Early Adopter of Bluetooth wireless

technology by joining the organization’s special interest group. Bluetooth is a global standard for short

range wireless connectivity between mobile PCs, mobile phones and other portable devices. Our

participation in this consortium of more than 200 industry leaders demonstrates our commitment to

contributing to the development of industry standards for the year 2000.

As our new product development progresses, ANADIGICS is focused on meeting market

demands for lower battery voltages and higher levels of product integration. As we look to 1999 and

the years ahead, our goal is to continue advancing our technology to support of our product portfolio

and to meet our existing and prospective customers’ requirements.
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The markets we serve are changing at a remarkably rapid pace. We’re energized by the knowl-

edge that remarkable technological advances are on the horizon—and proud of the role our

Company will play in taking those advances from concept to working reality.

Whether our customers are focused on Cable & Broadcast, Fiber Optics or Wireless, 

the sophisticated technology companies ANADIGICS serves have several things in common. 

They’re large, high-volume OEMs—90 percent of ANADIGICS’ revenue comes from Fortune 500

companies—who value long-term vendor relationships.

ANADIGICS meets their technological and customer service expectations by offering:

• A proven entity for the delivery of

high volume, quality products

• The ability to comply with stringent

commercial, technical, quality, and

delivery lead time requirements

• State-of-the-art manufacturing

• Capacity to meet upside demands

• The technological and commercial knowledge of our customers’ end markets and industry trends

necessary to serve as true partners to our customers

• An unwavering commitment to customer service

These characteristics are the foundation of our Company’s success. They reflect the qualities

not just of our core competencies, but of our core values, and they make it possible for us to 

continue to evolve into a world-class Company.

THE OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCE OF
OUR COMMUNICATIONS INTEGRATED CIRCUITS IS
A DIRECT RESULT OF ANADIGICS’ ABILITY TO ASSEMBLE

A TEAM OF HIGHLY QUALIFIED ENGINEERS 

AND TECHNICAL PROFESSIONALS.
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DOCSIS/MCNS—Data Over Cable Service Interface Specification/Multimedia Cable Network
System. The international standards defining functions and interfaces for transmitting data over
cable systems.

2 5 6  Q A M —256 Quadrature Amplitude Modulation. 256 QAM transmission provides more efficient
use of bandwidth, which expands cable operators’ channel capacity, allowing the transmission of more
channels or high definition TV signals.

G I G A B I T  E T H E R N E T —Gigabit Ethernet is a local area network (LAN) transmission standard
that provides a data rate of 1 billion bits per second (one gigabit), usually on optical fiber. 

AT M —Asynchronous Transfer Mode. ATM is a dedicated-connection switching technology that
organizes digital data into packets and transmits them over a medium using digital signal technology. 

M S M - T I A / P I N - T I A —Metal Semiconductor Metal-Transimpedance Amplifier/Positive-Intrinsic-
Negative Transimpedance Amplifier. MSM and PIN are two types of photodetectors. The MSM-TIA is an
integrated (one integrated circuit) photodetector and amplifier. The PIN-TIA comprises two integrated
circuit chips that are combined in one package to provide a combined photodetector and amplifier.

DW D M —Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing. WDM is a method to increase the capacity of
fiber optic transmission lines by sending multiple signals through a fiber each at a different wavelength.
DWDM is usually defined at 8 or more such signals being sent at one time.

P H E M T —Pseudomorphic High Electron Mobility Transistor.

M E S F E T —Metal Semiconductor Field Effect Transistor.

H B T —Heterojunction Bipolar Transistor. 
PHEMT, MESFET and HBT are types of transistors that can be manufactured in GaAs. PHEMT is a
high performance design that uses similar processing to MESFET but a more expensive star ting
wafer material. HBT also uses a more expensive material and requires additional processing steps
but offers a smaller chip size. MESFET is a very cost effective design that offers high performance
compared to silicon.

G a A s —Gallium Arsenide.
GaAs is a semiconductor material similar to silicon with certain unique properties, such as high 
frequency operation for microwave circuits and optical properties for fiber optic applications.

S E N S I T I V I T Y —The sensitivity of a device is a measure of its ability to detect a change in the
input signal as reflected in a change in the output of the device.

R F I C —Radio Frequency Integrated Circuit . 
Integrated Circuit used in the RF section of a network or device to transmit, receive, or process 
an RF communication signal.

M O D U L E —A type of semiconductor package that is comprised of numerous components that
allow it to perform a function.

O P TO E L E C T RO N I C —A device characterized by the ability to detect, transmit, or manipulate
electromagnetic signals in the infrared or visible light spectrum.

B A N DW I D T H —Bandwidth is a measure of the range of frequencies a communications signal
occupies. In digital systems, bandwidth is data speed in bits per second (bps). In analog systems, band-
width is defined in terms of the difference between the highest-frequency signal component and the
lowest-frequency signal component .
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Item 1. Business

General
ANADIGICS, Inc. (“ANADIGICS” or the “Company”)

is a leading supplier of radio frequency (“RF”) integrated
circuit solutions for the communications markets. The
Company’s products are used to receive and transmit
signals in a variety of broadband and wireless com-
munications applications. The Company’s effor ts in the
broadband area are focused on applications for cable 
television systems (“CATV”) and fiber optic communica-
tion systems. In the wireless area, the Company’s efforts
are directed towards applications in cellular telephone
and personal communication systems (“PCS”). The
Company designs, develops and manufactures its inte-
grated circuits primarily using gallium arsenide (“GaAs”)
semiconductor material. GaAs offers certain advantages
in RF/microwave applications including the integration 
of numerous RF/microwave functions, which cannot be
easily integrated in silicon-based circuits. The Company’s
high frequency integrated circuits can typically replace 
30 to 100 discrete components, permitting manufacturers
of end products to reduce the size and weight of their
products, increase power efficiency, improve reliability,
reduce manufacturing time and cost and enhance overall
system performance. The Company manufactures its
integrated circuits at its existing 4-inch wafer fabrication
facility in Warren, New Jersey and is in the process of
qualifying a new 6-inch wafer fabrication facility, also
located in Warren, New Jersey. The new wafer fabrication
facility is expected to commence full-scale production
during the second half of 1999.

Reportable Segment
The Company classifies its revenues based upon the

end application of the product in which its integrated 
circuits are used (See Note 7. “DISCLOSURES ABOUT
SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AND RELATED
INFORMATION” included in the consolidated financial
statements contained in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data). All operating expenses and assets
of the Company are combined and reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker on an enterprise-wide basis,
resulting in no additional discrete financial information or
reportable segment information.

Industry Overview
Over the last decade, there has been a continuous trend

toward delivering various forms of electronic information
at higher speeds and in greater quantity. New communi-
cations technologies and services, such as personal com-
munication systems, dense wavelength division multiplex
fiber optic communications, gigabit ethernet, digital cable
television, and cable modems have emerged to provide
improved performance and greater communication
capacity. Markets for RF/microwave integrated circuits

continue to grow rapidly fueled by the demand for these
new products and services.

Driving the development of new communications
technologies and services is the transition from analog to
digital modulation of audio and video signals. Digital
modulation, enabled by improved performance of digital
circuitry, provides improved quality, security and
increased capacity at lower costs. The combination of
greater bandwidth and digital modulation facilitates the
development of enhanced multimedia communication.

ANADIGICS’  Strategy
The Company’s objective is to be the leading supplier

of RF integrated circuits for the communications markets.
The following four elements, all of which are interrelated,
form the basis of ANADIGICS’ strategy.

First to Market with Proprietary Products
ANADIGICS believes that it must be “first to market”

with proprietary products with the speed, bandwidth,
and sensitivity required to make our customers leaders
and to drive growth in their end markets. ANADIGICS
has developed an experienced engineering staff that can
rapidly design cost-effective integrated circuit solutions
for its target markets. The combination of design experi-
ence and a “quick-turn” wafer fabrication and assembly
capability allows the Company to develop prototypes
that can be ready for testing in less than one month. This
design efficiency contributes to customer satisfaction and
allows the Company to improve product designs rapidly
for manufacturing efficiency.

Aggressive Cost Curve
ANADIGICS believes that its success depends on its

ability to follow product breakthroughs with a relentless
focus on reducing costs, including lowering unit costs,
improving integration/ease of use, and driving to single
chip solutions. The Company believes that a low cost
manufacturer must effectively control the critical phases of
production in order to maintain high manufacturing yields.

Customer Focused
ANADIGICS believes that in order to create products,

which have the potential to become industry standards,
it must be customer focused. This will allow the
Company to leverage the technologies necessary to
meet customer demands for performance, cost, ease of
use, and reliability.

ANADIGICS has developed working relationships with
leading companies. This strategy provides ANADIGICS
with rapid feedback from customers during the product
design phase and increases the likelihood that products
will meet customers’ cost and performance require-
ments. ANADIGICS’ working relationships with cus-
tomers worldwide have ranged from guaranteed
purchase orders to partially or fully funded development
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programs, in most cases with a limited exclusivity period
granted to the customer with respect to the developed
circuit . Examples of the Company’s strategy to focus on
worldwide industry leaders are the development of cellu-
lar telephone power amplifiers and receivers with
Ericsson in the United States and Sweden and the devel-
opment of cable television converter integrated circuits
with General Instrument in the United States and Taiwan.

People Oriented
ANADIGICS believes that its people are its most

important asset . The Company strives to create a high
performance environment that recognizes teamwork and
individual contributions. ANADIGICS has attracted the
finest engineers and highest quality professional employ-
ees to its workforce because it values and rewards inno-
vation, integrity and a commitment to quality. The
Company plans to continue to increase its investment in
employee training programs in an attempt to maintain its
competitive edge.

TARGET MARKETS AND PRODUCTS
To date, the Company has focused on communica-

tions markets, including the broadband CATV and fiber
optic communications markets, and high volume wireless
communications markets, including cellular and PCS
applications. These target markets are characterized by
transitions to broader bandwidths, to higher operating
frequencies and, in many cases, from analog to digital
modulation. The Company believes that these market
trends offer oppor tunities for ANADIGICS’ integrated
circuit solutions to add value by lowering costs, improving
reliability and reducing the size of customers’ products.

As par t of its new product strategy, ANADIGICS
plans to continue to focus on these same high growth
markets but also plans to expand its broadband product
offerings to include proprietary products that provide
barriers to entry from competition and an expanded
customer base. In the higher volume wireless applica-
tions, the Company intends to introduce standard prod-
ucts that expand the Company’s integrated circuit
content . The Company believes this will provide it with
increasing stability through product, customer, and geo-
graphic diversity.

Broadband Communications Markets
Cable Television Market . Cable television continues

to evolve from an industry that has traditionally delivered
multichannel one-way analog television programming
over a coaxial cable system to a multimedia industry
delivering up to 500 channels of interactive video and
other services such as telephony and internet access
over hybrid fiber optic coaxial (“HFC”) cable systems.
The greater bandwidth available from cable television sys-
tems is now being increasingly used to provide high speed
internet access via cable modems, thereby overcoming

the congestion frequently experienced by users who
access the internet by telephone lines. In a conventional
analog cable television system, the programmer’s signal is
first scrambled and then transmitted to a C-Band satel-
lite. A cable system “headend” facility receives television
signals from satellites and other sources and retransmits
them to subscribers through a distribution network com-
posed of coaxial and fiber optic cable and distribution
amplifiers which boost the signal level. The final compo-
nent of the cable television system, the subscriber equip-
ment, is comprised of a “dropwire” and, in some cases, a
“drop amplifier” which extend from the distribution net-
work to the subscriber’s home and connect either directly
to the subscriber’s television set or to a set-top converter
box. Addressable set-top conver ter boxes permit the 
efficient delivery of premium cable television services,
including pay-per-view programming. In the multimedia
environment, the HFC cable distribution system delivers
digitally compressed video to the home, has a return path
to the headend and contains switching functions. In such
an environment, the set-top converter box is essentially a
special purpose computer, handling compressed video and
interactive services.

Cable Television Terminal Products. The Company’s
CATV terminal products are used primarily as broad-
band tuners in set-top converters operating at 500 and
800 megahertz (“MHz”) bandwidth. The 800 MHz band-
width tuner provides increased analog channel capacity,
digital cable television capability and Internet access via a
cable modem. ANADIGICS’ 50-860 MHz integrated cir-
cuit chip set, which is comprised of an upconverter and
downconverter, is used as a tuner in analog and digital
50-860 MHz set-top converters and in cable modems.

During 1998, the Company introduced a reverse
amplifier, which is used to amplify reverse path signals in
set-top boxes and in cable modems. The Company also
developed a 256 QAM upconverter in late 1998, which
is used as a video tuner in digital set-top boxes.

The Company’s terminal products have been designed
into analog and digital set-top boxes by General Instrument
and Komatsu Murata Manufacturing Company, Limited
and into cable modems by Com21, Inc., Motorola, Inc,
3Com, Inc., and Cisco Systems, Inc. (currently as a refer-
ence design as part of a global alliance).

Cable Television Infrastructure Products. The
Company has a second-generation integrated circuit line
amplifier that is used as a repeater in 50-750 MHz HFC
distribution networks. These integrated circuits are
replacing silicon bipolar hybrid circuits used in this appli-
cation. The Company offers broadband linear (drop)
amplifier products operating at frequencies of up to 860
MHz for hybrid fiber/coaxial infrastructure applications.

The Company’s principal customer for line amplifiers is
Scientific-Atlanta, Inc.
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Fiber Optic Market . The capacity of global telecom-
munication and data communication infrastructures con-
tinues to be upgraded with fiber optic communication
systems in order to handle the demand for increasing
amounts of information. This growth has been driven, in
part, by the rapid growth of the Internet .

Fiber optic telecommunications systems use low loss
fiber optic cable to link central office switches with one
another and to connect the central office to the serving
area. Fiber optic transceivers are used as repeaters in
transmission systems to send and receive high data rate
information. The transceiver consists of a laser transmit-
ter and an optical receiver. The front end of most fiber
optic receiver contains a photodetector diode and a
transimpedance amplifier (“TIA”) which provides current
to voltage conversion and low noise signal amplification.

Fiber optic data communications systems use either
fiber channel or gigabit ethernet standards to achieve
high-speed data transfer. Fibre channel is a practical inex-
pensive, yet expandable method for achieving high-speed
data transfer among workstations, mainframes, and data
storage devices. It addresses the need for very fast trans-
fers of large volumes of information and is very effective
in applications where large blocks of data must be trans-
ferred within buildings and over short distances. Gigabit
ethernet standards are emerging as the most widely
used standard in local area networking situations. The
Company believes that demand for a combined solution
(photodetector and TIA—See Fiber Optic Products
below) for high-speed gigabit ethernet and fibre channel
data communication applications will grow substantially
over the next few years.

Fiber Optic Products. The Company’s principal prod-
ucts for fiber optic systems are TIAs that are used in 
Synchronous Optical Network (“SONET”) and 
Synchronous Digital Hierarchy (“SDH”) fiber optic trans-
missions. The Company’s TIAs are used in local loop
applications at rates of 622 Mb/s (OC-12) and 155 Mb/s
(OC-48) and long-haul systems at rates of 2.5 Gb/s 
(OC-48) and 10 Gb/s (OC-192).

During 1998, ANADIGICS introduced two GaAs
opto-electronic integrated circuit, an “MSM-TIA”, which
integrates a 850nm photodetector and a TIA that is
designed to meet the needs of the growing high speed
gigabit ethernet data communications market, and a
“PIN-TIA”, in response to the increasing number of
1300nm fiber optic installations in gigabit speed networks.
During 1998, ANADIGICS also developed a new TIA for
telecommunications systems that offers extremely low
group delay to prevent interchannel interference in 2.5
Gb/s dense wave division multiplexing (DWDM) and
wave division multiplexing (WDM) receivers.

ANADIGICS also provides TIAs for other applications,
including cable television distribution, asynchronous transfer

mode (ATM) data communication, and related products.
The Company’s major customers in 1998 for fiber

optic products include Nor tel, Methode Hewlett-
Packard, and Lucent Technologies.

Wireless Communications Market
The wireless communications market has grown rap-

idly over the past four years. The Company believes that
the need for compact, highly-efficient transmitters and
sensitive, low power consuming receivers within the rap-
idly developing wireless communications market has the
potential to provide numerous oppor tunities for
ANADIGICS.

Cellular and PCS telephone systems consist of base
stations which are connected to the public switched tele-
phone networks and transmit and receive telephone sig-
nals via radio frequency waves in the 800 or 1900 MHz
frequency range. Using either a portable or mobile tele-
phone, a subscriber can communicate through a base 
station and can move seamlessly from one cell to another.

In the United States, there are two competing 
digital cellular standards, time division multiple access 
(or “TDMA”) and code division multiple access (or
“CDMA”). TDMA increases capacity by placing three or
more calls in the same channel separated by time.
CDMA increases capacity by coding voice messages and
spreading information over many channels. Telephones
systems operating on the TDMA standard are also called
DAMPS (for digital AMPS). DAMPS telephones, which
are dual-mode with AMPS, are being offered by several
U.S. and South American operators. CDMA telephones,
some of which are dual mode with AMPS, are currently
being offered primarily in the United States and par ts 
of Asia.

The European digital standard, Global System Mobile,
(or “GSM”) has been standardized by the European
Union. GSM is the most widely deployed digital standard
in the world with a high degree of acceptance in Europe
and Asia. In addition, some systems have been deployed
in North America and South America.

As a result of its commitment to deliver high-
performance integrated circuits that enable wireless tech-
nology, ANADIGICS has become an early adopter of
Bluetooth wireless technology by joining a consor tium
comprised of approximately 200 companies. Bluetooth is
a technical specification for short-range 2.4 GHz radio
links between mobile personal computers and other
por table devices such as cellular telephones, por table
digital assistants, and digital cameras.

Wireless Communications Products. ANADIGICS’
integrated circuit products are used in transmitters and
receivers of cellular and PCS handsets where small size
and low power consumption are key parameters. The
Company offers products for wireless terminal (analog 
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cellular and major digital cellular and PCS telephones)
applications and infrastructure (base station) applications.

Terminal Applications. ANADIGICS has developed
low cost GaAs integrated circuit power amplifiers that are
smaller than discrete component and hybrid discrete
solutions, which the Company believes perform as well as
GaAs FET discrete solutions. During 1998, the Company
introduced a new family of 3 volt power amplifiers, which
address all major cellular standards, including AMPS,
DAMPS, GSM, and CDMA. The new family of dual and
single mode low voltage power amplifiers deliver excel-
lent power added efficiency while saving cost and circuit
board space.

ANADIGICS has also produced GaAs integrated circuit
front ends for cellular handset receivers.

In early 1999, the Company began developing a new
highly integrated power amplif ier module for use in
CDMA handsets. This product is very small and incorpo-
rates an integrated DC-to-DC converter, a breakthrough
development that allows all of the benefits of a GaAs
MESFET device without the need to separately supply
negative voltage in system designs.

Infrastructure Applications. The Company has devel-
oped and initiated production of GaAs integrated circuit
front ends for use in wireless local loop applications and
has also developed linear receiver front ends for use in
cellular base stations. During 1998, the Company intro-
duced three GaAs MMIC power amplifiers, which offer
high performance, cost effective solutions for infrastruc-
ture applications.

During the first half of 1998, the Company’s major
customers for wireless communications products were
Ericsson, Qualcomm and Qualcomm PE. During the sec-
ond half of 1998, the Company’s major customer for
wireless communications products was Ericsson.

Marketing,  Distr ibution and 
Customer Support

The Company primarily sells its products directly to
customers worldwide. ANADIGICS has developed work-
ing relationships with leading companies in the broadband
and wireless communications markets. The Company’s
principal customers in 1998 include LM Ericsson AB
(“Ericsson”), General Instrument Corp. (“General
Instrument”), Nortel Ltd. (“Nortel”), Tomen Electronics,
Corp., Hytel Group, Inc., Philips Electronics N.V., and
QUALCOMM Personal Electronics (“QUALCOMM PE”),
a par tnership between QUALCOMM, Inc. and Sony
Corp, QUALCOMM, Inc. (“QUALCOMM”), Scientific
Atlanta, and Methode Electronics, Inc (“Methode”). The
Company also selectively utilizes independent manufac-
turers’ representatives and distributors to complement its
direct sales and customer support efforts.

ANADIGICS believes that the technical nature of its
products and markets demands an extraordinary com-
mitment to close relationships with its customers. The
sales and marketing staff, assisted by the technical staff
and senior management, visit prospective and existing
customers worldwide on a regular basis, and between
visits both field and factory sales personnel stay in close
contact with customers. The Company believes that
these contacts are vital to the development of a close
long-term working relationship with its customers, and in
obtaining regular forecasts, market updates, and informa-
tion regarding technical and market trends.

The ANADIGICS design and applications engineering
staff is actively involved with a customer during all phases
of design and production by publishing and providing the
customer with engineering data, up-to-date product
application notes, following up with the customer’s engi-
neers on a regular basis, and assisting in resolving techni-
cal problems by working with the customers’ engineers
both on and off site. In most cases the design and appli-
cations engineers obtain prototypes from the customer
in order to debug and identify potential improvements to
the design in parallel with the customer’s effor t . This
strategy helps customers speed up their design process,
achieve cost-effective and manufacturable designs, and
ensure a smooth transition into high volume production.

ANADIGICS’ policy is to provide its customers with
applications engineering support at its customers’ facto-
ries throughout the world, generally within 48 hours of a
customer request . The Company’s sales are typically
made pursuant to customer purchase orders, and such
orders may be canceled without significant penalty.

Manufacturing,  Assembly and Test ing
The Company fabricates all of its integrated circuits on

four-inch diameter GaAs wafers at its plant in Warren,
New Jersey in an 8,000 square foot, Class 100 cleanroom.
Present production capacity is approximately 40,000 four-
inch diameter wafers per year. If the Company is not suc-
cessful in qualifying its new 6-inch wafer fabrication facility
(see related discussion below), the Company believes 
that this facility should be able to satisfy its production
needs through the end of 1999. See “Risk Factors—
Possible Production Capacity Constraints; Possible Delay
in Construction of New Production Facility”.

ANADIGICS’ wafer processing technology has been
developed for reliable manufacturing. The Company has
developed a GaAs D-MESFET process that it uses 
to produce most of its products. By using ion implant
variations, the Company can optimize performance and
yield, allowing it to produce, for example, high linearity,
low-noise, receiver integrated circuits or transmitter 
integrated circuits with high power and efficiency. 
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ANADIGICS’ wafer processing technology has been
developed for reliable manufacturing.

The Company has also developed a GaAs Pseudo-
morphic High Electron Mobility Transistor (PHEMT)
manufacturing process, which achieves extremely 
high electron mobility. Devices manufactured using
ANADIGICS’ PHEMT manufacturing process have better
sensitivity and bandwidth than conventional MESFET
devices and hence are an enabling technology that serves
high bit rate fiber optic systems. The Company is cur-
rently introducing devices for fiber optic communications
applications using its newly developed PHEMT manufac-
turing process.

The Company is in the process of qualifying a new 
6-inch wafer fabrication facility, also located in Warren,
New Jersey. Expected production capacity is approxi-
mately 39,000 six-inch diameter wafers per year. The new
wafer fabrication facility is expected to commence full-scale
production during the second half of 1999. The Company
expects that the new 6-inch wafer fabrication facility will
enable the Company to approximately double its 1998
production levels. The new wafer fabrication facility will
have additional space in which the Company expects to
add more manufacturing capacity in the future.

In association with the star t-up of the Company’s new
6-inch wafer fabrication facility during the second half of
1999, the Company plans to close its existing 4-inch
wafer fabrication facility during the same period. The
Company is currently accelerating the depreciation and
amortization of the assets and leasehold improvements
used in its existing wafer fabrication facility. (See “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—1998 vs. 1997—
GROSS MARGIN”).

Fabricated wafers are shipped to contractors in Asia
for assembly in integrated circuit packages. Once assem-
bled by the contractor, packaged integrated circuits are
shipped back to the Company’s Warren, New Jersey
facility for final testing. The Company believes that its
automated test systems are important to its ability to
manufacture high quality integrated circuits at a low cost .
ANADIGICS has a staff of test engineers that design and
build custom test systems and program commercially
available test systems to facilitate rapid testing of its
GaAs integrated circuits at high frequencies. See “Risk
Factors—Possible Production Capacity Constraints;
Possible Delay in Construction of New Production
Facility” and “—Dependence on Semiconductor
Assembly Contractors”.

The Company’s design and manufacturing processes
were cer tif ied as ISO 9001 compliant in December
1993. Since that date, the Company has maintained com-
pliance with this standard.

Raw Materia ls
Blank GaAs wafers, other raw materials, and equip-

ment used in the production of the Company’s integrated
circuits are available from several suppliers. The Company
currently has two qualified blank wafer suppliers, both
located in Japan. Although the Company has not experi-
enced any significant delay in obtaining wafers, compo-
nents, or production equipment, no assurances can be
given that a shor tage will not arise in the future. See
“Risk Factors—Limited Sources for Certain Components,
Materials and Equipment”.

Research and Development
The Company has made significant investments in its

proprietary processes, including product design, wafer
fabrication, and integrated circuit testing, which the
Company believes gives it a competitive advantage. To
date, the Company’s research and development efforts
have focused on developing low cost, high volume pro-
duction of GaAs integrated circuit products for the
telecommunication and television industries. During
1998, approximately two-thirds of the Company’s
research and development expenses were for the 
development of integrated circuits for cellular, PCS and
other wireless applications and the remaining one-third
was primarily for the development of integrated circuits
for fiber optic telecommunications applications and 
cable television applications. As of March 23, 1999, the
Company had approximately 85 engineers assigned 
primarily to research and development .

The Company expects to increase its research 
and development effor ts in its broadband communica-
tions applications (cable and broadcast, and fiber optic)
during 1999 and expects its wireless communications
research and development efforts to remain consistent
with 1998 levels.

The ability to simulate and model circuits is a critical
technology for analog integrated circuit design, especially
at high frequencies. The Company has developed a set of
simulation tools and device models, which are custom-fit
to the Company’s process. Recognizing the importance
of powerful electronic design automation (“EDA”) tools,
in 1998 ANADIGICS partnered with a leading manufac-
turer of RF/analog EDA systems, HP EEsof, to develop
and enhance design tools to improve the Company’s
research and development efficiency. The partnership’s
primary objectives are to improve package modeling,
design tool training, and design tool integration.

The Company is also in the process of researching 
and developing other wafer processing technologies,
including GaAs heterojunction bipolar transistor (“GaAs
HBT”) technology.

Competi t ion
While competition in all of the markets for the

Company’s current products is intense, the basis on
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which the Company competes varies by product .
Competitors in the wireless market are entrenched 
suppliers of discrete receiver front-end devices such as
Fujitsu Compound Semiconductor Inc., Mitsubishi
Electric Corp., Motorola, Inc., Philips Electronics N.V. and
Siemens AG; discrete hybrid power amplifiers suppliers
such as Fujitsu Compound Semiconductor Inc., Hitachi,
Ltd., Matsushita Electric Industrial Co. Ltd., Mitsubishi
Electric Corp. and Philips Electronics N.V.; and GaAs inte-
grated circuit manufacturers for receiver front-end or
power amplifiers such as Radio Frequency Microwave
Devices Inc., Fujitsu Compound Semiconductor Inc.,
Motorola, Raytheon Co., Conexant, and TriQuint
Semiconductor, Inc. The Company competes in the wire-
less market generally on the basis of price and product
performance.

In the cable and broadcast television markets,
ANADIGICS’ integrated circuits compete primarily with
manufacturers of discrete components. In these markets,
the Company competes on the basis of price and prod-
uct performance, specifically as they relate to the ability
of its GaAs integrated circuits to replace a large number
of discrete components. Manufacturers of discrete com-
ponents include Fujitsu Compound Semiconductor Inc.,
Mitsubishi Electric Corp., NEC Corp., Philips Electronics
N.V., and Siemens AG.

In the fiber optic markets, ANADIGICS competes
with other GaAs and silicon integrated circuit manufac-
turers, generally on the basis of product performance,
reliability and price. Principal competitors in this market
are Philips Electronics N.V., TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.
and Vitesse Semiconductor Corp. as well as many end-
user product manufacturers who design and fabricate
their own in-house solutions.

Many of the Company’s competitors have significantly
greater financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing
resources than the Company. Increased competition
could adversely affect the Company’s revenue and prof-
itability by causing it to reduce prices or by reducing
demand for the Company’s products.

Employees
At December 31, 1998, the Company had approxi-

mately 475 employees, none of whom was a member of
a labor union. The Company believes its labor relations
to be good and has never experienced a work stoppage.

Patents ,  Licenses and Proprietar y Rights
It is the Company’s practice to seek U.S. and foreign

patent and copyright protection on its products and
developments where appropriate and to protect its valu-
able technology under U.S. and foreign laws affording
protection for trade secrets and for semiconductor chip
designs. As of December 31, 1998, the Company owns
sixteen U.S. patents and has seven pending U.S. patent

applications and one pending foreign patent application
filed under the Patent Cooperation Treaty. The U.S.
patents were issued between 1988 and 1998 and will
expire between 2006 and 2016.

The Company relies primarily upon trade secrets,
technical know-how and other unpatented proprietary
information relating to its product development and
manufacturing activities. To protect its trade secrets,
technical know-how and other proprietary information,
the Company’s employees are required to enter into
agreements providing for maintenance of confidentiality
and the assignment of rights to inventions made by them
while in the employ of the Company. The Company also
has entered into non-disclosure agreements to protect
its confidential information delivered to third parties in
conjunction with possible corporate collaborations and
for other purposes.

Environmental  Matters
The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of

extensive and changing federal, state and local environ-
mental laws, regulations and ordinances that govern
activities or operations that may have adverse effects on
human health or the environment . Such laws, regulations
or ordinances may impose liability for the cost of remedi-
ating, and for cer tain damages resulting from, sites of
past releases of hazardous materials. The Company
believes that it currently conducts, and in the past has
conducted, its activities and operations in substantial
compliance with applicable environmental laws, and
believes that costs arising from existing environmental
laws will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.
There can be no assurance, however, that the environ-
mental laws will not become more stringent in the future
or that the Company will not incur significant costs in the
future in order to comply with such laws.

Risk Factors
IN ADDITION TO THE OTHER INFORMATION

CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING
RISK FACTORS SHOULD BE CONSIDERED CARE-
FULLY IN EVALUATING AN INVESTMENT IN THE
COMPANY. CERTAIN STATEMENTS IN THIS REPORT,
SUCH AS STATEMENTS CONCERNING THE DEVELOP-
MENT OF NEW COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGIES
AND SERVICES, THE TREND IN COMMUNICATION
SYSTEMS TOWARD HIGHER OPERATING FREQUEN-
CIES, THE EVOLUTION OF COMMUNICATION SYS-
TEMS FROM ANALOG TO DIGITAL MODULATION,
THE GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES OF CERTAIN MAR-
KETS FOR THE COMPANY’S PRODUCTS, THE COM-
PANY’S PLANS WITH RESPECT TO, AMONG OTHER
THINGS, CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, PRODUCTION
CAPACITY, REVENUES, EARNINGS, LIQUIDITY AND
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CAPITAL RESOURCES, ACCOUNTING AND TAX
MATTERS AND REGULATORY MATTERS, AND
OTHER STATEMENTS REGARDING MATTERS THAT
ARE NOT HISTORICAL FACTS, ARE FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS (AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED
IN THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED)
THAT INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES. THESE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS CAN GENER-
ALLY BE IDENTIFIED AS SUCH BECAUSE THE CON-
TEXT OF THE STATEMENT WILL INCLUDE WORDS
SUCH AS THE COMPANY “BELIEVES”, “ANTICI-
PATES”, “EXPECTS” OR WORDS OF SIMILAR
IMPORT. SIMILARLY, STATEMENTS THAT DESCRIBE
THE COMPANY’S FUTURE PLANS, OBJECTIVES, ESTI-
MATES OR GOALS ARE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS. THE CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
MADE IN THIS REPORT SHOULD BE READ AS BEING
APPLICABLE TO ALL RELATED FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS WHEREVER THEY APPEAR IN THIS
REPORT. IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD
CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS AND DEVELOPMENTS 
TO BE MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM THOSE
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY SUCH STATEMENTS
INCLUDE THOSE FACTORS DISCUSSED BELOW, 
AS WELL AS THOSE DISCUSSED ELSEWHERE HEREIN.

Dependence on a Smal l  Number 
of  Customers

The Company receives most of its revenues from a
few significant customers. Sales to the Company’s three
largest customers in each of the past three years
accounted for 45%, 62% and 56% of net sales in 1996,
1997 and 1998, respectively. Ericsson, General
Instrument, and Nortel accounted for 34%, 17%, and 5%
of 1998 net sales, respectively. The Company’s operating
results have been materially and adversely affected in the
past by the failure of anticipated orders to be realized
and by deferrals or cancellations of orders as a result of
changes in customer requirements. If the Company were
to lose a major customer, or if sales to a major customer
were to decrease materially, the Company’s results of
operations would be materially and adversely affected.
See “The Company—Target Markets and Products” in
this Section.

Possible Delays in  Development 
of  New Markets ;  Uncertainty of  
Acceptance of  New Products

The extent of the Company’s success will depend to a
considerable extent upon the continued worldwide
growth within the Company’s targeted markets. No
assurance can be given regarding the rate at which these
markets will grow or regarding the Company’s ability to
produce competitive products, particularly modules for
cellular and PCS applications, for such applications and

systems as they grow. The success of new product
introductions is dependent upon several factors, includ-
ing timely completion of new product designs, achieve-
ment of acceptable manufacturing yields and market
acceptance of its products and its customer’s products.
No assurance can be given that the Company’s product
and process development effor ts will be successful or
that its new products or its customer’s new products will
achieve market acceptance.

Variabi l i ty  of  Manufacturing Yields
The Company’s manufacturing yields vary significantly

among products, depending on the complexity of a par-
ticular GaAs integrated circuit’s design and the
Company’s experience in manufacturing such integrated
circuits. Historically, the Company has experienced diffi-
culties in achieving planned yields on certain new GaAs
integrated circuits, which have adversely affected gross
margins. Although the Company’s process technology
utilizes standard silicon semiconductor manufacturing
equipment, aggregate production quantities of GaAs
integrated circuits manufactured by the Company and
the GaAs integrated circuit industry in general have been
relatively low compared with silicon integrated circuit
production volumes.

Regardless of the process technology used, the fabri-
cation of integrated circuits is a highly complex and pre-
cise process. Defects in masks, impurities in the materials
used, contamination of the manufacturing environment,
equipment failure and other difficulties in the fabrication
process can cause a substantial percentage of wafers to
be rejected or numerous integrated circuits on each
wafer to be nonfunctional, thereby reducing yields.

Because a large por tion of the Company’s costs of
manufacturing are relatively fixed and average selling
prices tend to decline over time, improvements in the
number of shippable integrated circuits per wafer and
increases in the production volume of wafers are critical
to maintaining and improving the Company’s results of
operations. Yield decreases can result in substantially
higher unit costs, which could materially and adversely
affect operating results. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to continue to improve its
yields in the future or that the Company will not suffer
periodic yield problems, particularly during the early pro-
duction of new products. In either case, the Company’s
results of operations could be materially and adversely
affected. See “The Company—Manufacturing, Assembly
and Testing”.

Possible Production Capaci ty Constraints;
Poss ible Delay in Construct ion of  New
Production Faci l i ty

The Company currently manufactures all of its 
integrated circuits at its four-inch wafer fabrication facility
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located at 35 Technology Drive in Warren, New Jersey.
The Company believes that this facility should be able to
satisfy its production needs through the end of 1999.
However, if production volumes were to signif icantly
increase from 1998 levels, the Company may be
required to successfully hire, train and manage addi-
tional production personnel in order to successfully
increase production capacity at this facility. There can 
be no assurance that the Company will be able to 
implement these changes successfully. If the increase in
production capacity is delayed for any reason, the
Company will be limited in its ability to increase sales
volumes. In addition, a failure to increase production
could adversely affect relationships with customers if the
Company does not have sufficient capacity to satisfy the
demand for its products.

The Company is currently in the process of qualifying
a new wafer fabrication facility located at 141 Mount
Bethel Road, Warren, New Jersey. Qualification activities
are expected to continue in 1999 and full-scale 
production is expected to commence during the second
half of 1999. There can be no assurance that the
Company will successfully qualify the wafer fabrication
facility by the end of the first half of 1999 and failure to
do so would have a material adverse effect on its gross
margin and operations.

The successful operation of the new facility, once com-
pleted, as well as the Company’s overall production
operations, will also be subject to numerous risks. The
Company will be required to train and manage produc-
tion personnel successfully in order to effectively operate
the new facility. The Company does not have excess
production capacity at its 35 Technology Drive facility 
to offset any failure of the new facility to meet planned
production goals beyond 1999. The failure of the
Company to successfully operate the new facility would
have a material and adverse effect on its gross margin
and operations.

The Company will also have to effectively coordinate
and manage the shutdown of its existing wafer fabrica-
tion facility and to commence full-scale production at its
new wafer fabrication facility during the second half of
1999. The failure to successfully coordinate and manage
these two activities would adversely affect the Company’s
overall production and could have a material and
adverse effect on its gross margin and operations. See
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

Rapid Product and Process  Development
and Rapid Technological  Changes

The markets for the Company’s products are char-
acterized by rapid changes in both product and process
technologies. Because of continual improvements in
these technologies, the Company believes that its future

success will depend in part upon its ability to continue to
improve its product and process technologies and
develop new products and process technologies. If a
competing technology develops that is superior to the
Company’s existing technology and the Company is
unable to implement successfully such technology or to
develop a competitive and economic alternative technol-
ogy, the Company’s operations would be materially and
adversely affected. See “The Company—Competition”
and “—Research and Development”.

In each of the markets in which the Company com-
petes, prices of established products tend to decline 
significantly over time. Accordingly, in order to remain
competitive, the Company believes that it must continue
to develop product enhancements and new technologies
that will either slow the price declines of its products or
reduce the cost of producing and delivering its products.
Developing these enhancements and technologies
requires investment by the Company, and there can be
no assurance that funds for such investments will be
available or that such enhancements and technologies
will be successful.

Signi f icant Variabi l i ty  of  
Operating Results

The Company participates in a highly dynamic industry
and future results could be subject to significant volatility,
par ticularly on a quar terly basis. The Company may
experience substantial period-to-period fluctuations in
future operating results due to numerous factors, includ-
ing general industry and global economic conditions, the
timing and success of new product introductions,
changes in selling prices for the Company’s integrated 
circuits due to competitive or currency exchange rate
pressures, changes in product mix, availability of raw
materials, availability of manufacturing capacity, fluctua-
tions in manufacturing yields, the size and timing of 
shipments, market acceptance of end-user products, the
pattern of end-user or customer purchasing cycles, the
processes and technologies used by the Company and its
competitors and seasonality.

The semiconductor industry has been characterized
by cyclicality. The industry has experienced significant
economic downturns at various times, characterized by
diminished product demand, accelerated erosion of aver-
age selling prices and production over-capacity. Although
the semiconductor industry in general, and the portion
of such industry serving the communications industry in
particular, are currently experiencing a period of increased
demand, there can be no assurance that these conditions
will continue.

Product Li fe  Cycles
The life cycles of cer tain products manufactured by

the Company are heavily dependent upon the life 
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cycles of the end products, which include the Company’s
products. The Company estimates that current life cycles
for cellular and PCS telephone handsets, and in turn the
Company’s cellular and PCS products, are approximately
12 to 24 months. Products with short life cycles (i.e. less
than two years) require the Company to closely manage
production and inventory levels. There can be no 
assurance that the Company will not be materially
effected by obsolete or excess inventories, which may
result from unanticipated changes in the estimated 
total demand for the Company’s products and/or the 
estimated life cycles of the end products which include
the Company’s products.

Competi t ion
The semiconductor industry is intensely competitive

and is characterized by rapid technological change. To date,
the Company has competed primarily with manufacturers
of discrete GaAs and silicon semiconductors, and GaAs
and silicon integrated circuit manufacturers. The Company
expects increased competition from other GaAs inte-
grated circuit manufacturers, silicon analog integrated cir-
cuit manufacturers and a number of companies, which
may penetrate the RF/microwave integrated circuit com-
munications market with other competing technologies,
such as silicon germanium. In addition, cer tain of the
Company’s customers are competitors of the Company.

Increased competition could result in decreased prices
of GaAs integrated circuits, reduced demand for the
Company’s products and a reduction in the Company’s
ability to recover development-engineering costs. Any of
these developments could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s results of operations. Most of the
Company’s current and potential competitors, including
Fujitsu Compound Semiconductor Inc., ITT Corp.,
Motorola Inc., Radio Frequency Microwave Devices, Inc.,
Raytheon Co., Conexant, and TriQuint Semiconductor,
Inc. have significantly greater financial, technical, manufac-
turing and marketing resources than the Company.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to compete successfully with its existing or new
competitors. See “The Company—Competition”.

Dependence on Semiconductor 
Assembly Contractors

The Company does not assemble its integrated 
circuits; instead it provides the GaAs integrated circuit
dice and, in some cases, packaging components to inte-
grated circuit assembly vendors, which are located in
Asia and Canada. The Company maintains one qualified
service supplier for each assembly process. The Company’s
inability to obtain sufficient high quality and timely
assembly service, or the loss of any of its current assem-
bly vendors, would result in delays or reductions in prod-
uct shipment, and/or reduced product yields that could
materially and adversely affect its results of operations.

The Company is in the process of developing
advanced packaging technologies that will allow the
Company to produce multi-chip modules. Similar to 
the integrated circuit assembly disclosures above, the
Company does not intend to assemble multi-chip mod-
ules; instead it plans to provide the integrated circuit dice
and, in some cases, packaging components to multi-chip
module assembly vendors, which are located in Asia.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to obtain sufficient, high quality and timely module
assembly service. The Company’s inability to obtain such
service could result in delays or reductions in product
shipments, and/or reduced product yields that could
materially and adversely affect its results of operations.

Limi ted Sources for Certain
Components ,  Materia ls  and Equipment

The Company does not manufacture any of the blank
wafers or packaging components used in the production
of its GaAs integrated circuits. Blank wafers and pack-
aging components are available from a limited number of
sources. The inability of the Company to obtain these
wafers or components in the required quantities could
result in delays or reductions in product shipments,
which would materially and adversely affect the
Company’s operating results. Although the Company has
not to date experienced any signif icant diff iculty in
obtaining wafers or components, no assurance can be
given that shortages will not arise in the future.

The Company is dependent on a limited number of
vendors to supply equipment used in its manufacturing
processes. At times of high demand for semiconductor
manufacturing equipment, lead times for delivery of such
equipment can be substantial. No assurance can be given
that the Company would not lose potential sales if it
were unable to maintain or increase capacity due to the
unavailability of manufacturing equipment . See “Possible
Production Capacity Constraints; Possible Delay in
Construction of New Production Facility”.

International  Sales  and Operations
Sales to customers located outside North America

(based on shipping addresses and not on the locations of
ultimate end users) accounted for approximately 65%,
57% and 58% of total net sales for 1996, 1997 and 1998,
respectively. The Company expects that revenues
derived from international sales will continue to repre-
sent a signif icant por tion of its total net sales. Inter-
national sales are subject to a variety of risks, including
those arising from currency fluctuations and restrictions,
tariffs, trade barriers, taxes and export license require-
ments. Because all of the Company’s foreign sales are
currently denominated in U.S. dollars, the Company’s
products become less price competitive in countries with
currencies that are low or are declining in value against
the U.S. dollar. In addition, there can be no assurance that
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the Company’s international customers will continue to
accept orders denominated in U.S. dollars. If such cus-
tomers do not continue to accept orders denominated
in U.S. dollars, the Company’s reported sales and earn-
ings would become more directly subject to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

During February 1998, the Company received order
cancellations from one of the Company’s customers as a
result of the economic turmoil in Asia. Continued eco-
nomic turmoil in the Asian markets, or elsewhere in the
world, may adversely impact the Company’s customers’
ability to sell their products in those effected markets or
to customers producing for the affected market .

Substantially all of the Company’s blank wafers and
packaging components used in the production of GaAs
integrated circuits are supplied by, and substantially all of
the Company’s products are assembled by, independent
third parties in Asia. Due to its reliance on such foreign
suppliers and assemblers, the Company is subject to the
risks of conducting business outside of the United States.
These risks include unexpected changes in, or imposi-
tions of, legislative or regulatory requirements, delays
resulting from difficulty in obtaining export licenses, tar-
iffs and other trade barriers and restrictions, and the
burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws and
other factors beyond the Company’s control. The
Company is also subject to general geopolitical risks in
connection with its international operations, such as
political, social and economic instability, potential hostilities
and changes in diplomatic and trade relationships.
Although the Company has not to date experienced any
material adverse effect on its operations as a result of
such regulatory, geopolitical and other factors, there can
be no assurance that such factors will not adversely
affect the Company’s operations in the future or require
the Company to modify its current business practices.
The Company currently transacts business with its 
foreign suppliers and assemblers in U.S. dollars and 
consequently the cost of the Company’s blank wafers and
packaging components, as well as assembly costs, would
increase in countries with currencies that are increasing
in value against the U.S. dollar. In addition, there can be
no assurance that the Company’s international suppliers
and assemblers will continue to accept orders denomi-
nated in U.S. dollars. If such suppliers and assemblers do
not continue to accept orders denominated in U.S. dollars,
the Company’s costs would become more directly sub-
ject to foreign exchange fluctuations.

Reluctance of  Manufacturers  to 
Adopt GaAs Components

Silicon semiconductor technologies are the dominant
process technologies for integrated circuits. The Company’s
prospective customers are typically systems designers 

and manufacturers who use such silicon technologies 
in their existing systems and who are evaluating GaAs
integrated circuits for use in their next generation 
systems. Some potential customers may be reluctant 
to adopt the Company’s GaAs products because of 
perceived risks relating to GaAs technology generally.
Such perceived risks include the unfamiliarity of designing
systems with GaAs products as compared with silicon
products, novel design, unfamiliar manufacturing
processes and uncertainties about the relative cost effec-
tiveness of GaAs products compared to high perfor-
mance silicon-based integrated circuits. In addition,
customers may be reluctant to rely on a smaller company
such as ANADIGICS for critical components. There can
be no assurance that additional systems manufacturers
will design the Company’s products into their respective
systems, that the companies that have utilized the
Company’s products will continue to do so in the future
or that GaAs integrated circuit technology will achieve
widespread market acceptance. See “The Company—
Industry Overview” and “—Competition”.

Intel lectual  Property Claims
The Company’s success depends in part on its ability

to obtain patents and copyrights, maintain trade secret
protection and operate without infringing on the pro-
prietary rights of third parties.

As is typical in the semiconductor industry, the
Company has been notified, and may be notified in the
future, that it is infringing cer tain patent and/or other
intellectual property rights of others. Currently, there is
one unresolved notice claiming that the Company is
infringing intellectual proper ty rights of others. The
Company believes this asser tion is without merit and
intends to defend such action vigorously. In the event of
such infringement, no assurance can be given that
licenses could be obtained on commercially reasonable
terms. The Company does not believe that the failure to
obtain necessary licenses or other rights would have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business.

In addition to patent and copyright protection, the
Company also relies on trade secrets, technical know-
how and other unpatented proprietary information
relating to its product development and manufacturing
activities which it seeks to protect, in part, by confiden-
tiality agreements with its collaborators and employees.
There can be no assurance that these agreements 
will not be breached, that the Company would have ade-
quate remedies for any breach or that the Company’s
trade secrets and proprietary know-how will not other-
wise become known or independently discovered by
others. See “The Company—Patents, Licenses and
Proprietary Rights”.
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Government Regulat ion of
Communicat ions Industr y

The sale of products by customers who purchase the
Company’s GaAs integrated circuits may be materially
and adversely affected by governmental regulatory poli-
cies, the imposition of common carrier tariffs or taxation
of telecommunications services.

Environmental  Regulat ions
The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of

extensive and changing federal, state and local environ-
mental laws, regulations and ordinances that govern
activities or operations that may have adverse effects on
human health or the environment . Such laws, regulations
or ordinances may impose liability for the cost of remedi-
ating, and for cer tain damages resulting from, sites of
past releases of hazardous materials. The Company
believes that it currently conducts, and in the past has
conducted, its activities and operations in substantial
compliance with applicable environmental laws, and
believes that costs arising from existing environmental
laws will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
There can be no assurance, however, that environmental
laws will not become more stringent in the future or that
the Company will not incur significant costs in the future
in order to comply with such laws. See “The Company—
Environmental Matters”.

Dependence on Key Manageria l  
and Technical  Personnel

The Company’s success depends in part upon attract-
ing and retaining the services of its managerial and tech-
nical personnel. To the extent the Company proceeds
with its future expansion plans, it may be required to
hire additional personnel. The competition for qualified
personnel is intense. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to retain its key managerial and
technical employees or that it will be able to attract,
assimilate or retain other managerial and skilled technical
personnel in the future. The Company does not maintain
“key person” life insurance policies on any of its key 
personnel. See “The Company—Employees” and “Item 10.
Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant”.

Year 2000 Risk
As has been widely reported, many computer systems

process dates based on two digits for the year of trans-
action and may be unable to process dates in the year
2000 and beyond. There are many risks associated with
the year 2000 compliance issue, including but not limited
to the possible failure of the Company’s systems and
hardware with embedded applications. Any such failure
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations and financial condition. In addition,
there can be no guarantee that the systems of other

companies, including the Company’s vendors, utilities and
customers, will be converted in a timely manner, or that
a failure to convert by another company, or a conversion
that is incompatible with the Company’s systems, would
not have a material adverse effect on the Company. 
(See Item 7.—“Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Impact of Year 2000”.)

Item 2. Properties
The Company was incorporated in Delaware on 

April 24, 1984. The executive offices of the Company
are located at 35 Technology Drive, Warren, New Jersey
07059. The Company currently occupies space in three
buildings, all of which are located in the same industrial
park. Approximately 72,000 square feet of office and
manufacturing space is occupied in a building located at
35 Technology Drive under a lease expiring on May 1,
2005, the terms of which may be extended for an 
additional ten year period and two additional five year
periods. Approximately 7,500 square feet of office space
is occupied in a building located at 30 Technology Drive
under a five-year rental agreement . Approximately
167,000 square feet of manufacturing and office space is
occupied in a building located at 141 Mt . Bethel Road in
Warren, New Jersey under a twenty year lease expiring
on December 31, 2016.

The Company also occupies a 500 square feet sales
and administration office located in Easton, Pennsylvania
under a one year lease agreement that can be extended,
at the option of the Company, on an annual basis.

The Company’s telephone number is: 
(908) 668-5000. 

The Company’s Website address is: 
http://www.anadigics.com.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In March and April 1998, there were filed against 

the Company and cer tain of its officers and directors 
in the United States District Cour t for the District 
of New Jersey seven proposed class action lawsuits 
(collectively, the “Class Action Lawsuits”), captioned
Assuncao v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-917; Office and
Professional Employees International Union Local 153
Pension Fund v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-919; Kotler
v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-923; Gray v. Anadigics,
Inc., et al., No. 98-1337; Mirpuri v. Anadigics, Inc., et al.,
No. 98-1811; Grayson v. Rosenzweig, et al., No. 98-1688;
and Morgante v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-2024. The
Complaints filed in the Class Action Lawsuits (each of
which names a combination of the following directors
and officers of the Company: Ronald Rosenzweig,
George Gilber t, Harry T. Rein, John F. Lyons, Charles
Huang, Javed Patel, Sheo Khetan and Robert Bayruns)
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seek unspecified damages in connection with claims
under Sections 10(b) (and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 and, as set for th in the Union Local 153, 
Kotler, Gray and Mirpuri Complaints, claims alleging 
common law fraud and negligent misrepresentation. 
The Complaints allege that, as a result of certain material
misstatements and omissions made by the Company in
connection with its business, the price of the Company’s
common stock was ar tificially inflated during the pro-
posed class periods. The longest proposed class period
alleged by the plaintiffs in the Class Action Lawsuits is the
period from July 17, 1997 through January 30, 1998. On
December 20, 1998, the United States District Court for
the District of New Jersey entered an Order consolidat-
ing the Class Action Lawsuits into one action, captioned
In re Anadigics, Inc. Securities Litigation, No. 98-CV-917
(the “Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit”), and appoint-
ing Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Plaintiffs’ Counsel. The par-
ties to the Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit have
jointly requested the Court to extend to April 5, 1999
the deadline by which plaintiffs must file their Amended
Consolidated Complaint . Although the Company is
unable at this time to assess the probable outcome of
the Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit or the materiality
of the risk of loss in connection therewith (given that
none of the original Complaints had alleged damages
with any par ticularity and the Amended Consolidated
Complaint has not yet been served), the Company
believes that it has acted responsibly and intends to 
vigorously defend such Lawsuits.

On or about August 3, 1998, a shareholders derivative
lawsuit, captioned Deegan v. Rosenzweig, et al., No. 98-
CV-3640 (the “Derivative Lawsuit”), was filed in 
the United States District Cour t for the District of 
New Jersey against the Company (as nominal defendant)
and the following officers and directors thereof: 
Charles Bur ton, Paul Bachow, Rober t Bayruns, Ronald
Rosenzweig, George Gilber t, John Lyons, Harry Rein,
Sheo Khetan, Javed Patel, Charles Huang and Phillip
Wallace. The Complaint in the Derivative Lawsuit alleges
claims, which are predicated upon the Class Action
Lawsuits, seeking damages, contribution, indemnification
and equitable relief. On October 28, 1998, the United
States District Cour t for the District of New Jersey 
stayed the Derivative Lawsuit pending the earlier of 
(1) the disposition of any motion to dismiss the
Complaint (or any Consolidated Amended Complaint) in
the Class Action Lawsuits or (2) the commencement of
discovery in the Class Action Lawsuits. As a result, on
October 29, 1998, the Court administratively dismissed
the Derivative Lawsuit without prejudice. Although the 

Company is unable at this time to assess the probable
outcome of the Derivative Lawsuit or the materiality of
the risk of loss in connection therewith (given that the
original Complaint did not allege damages with any par-
ticularity and no operative pleading presently exists), the
Company believes that the original Complaint filed
therein was deficient .

The Company has provided information to the
Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with
what the Company understands to be the Commission’s
investigation, pursuant to a Formal Order of Investiga-
tion, into trading in the Company’s stock in January 1998.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to Vote 
of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security 
holders during the fourth quarter of 1998.

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity
and Related Stockholder Matters

ANADIGICS’ Common Stock has been quoted on the
NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “ANAD”
since the commencement of trading on April 21, 1995
following the initial public offering of the Common 
Stock. The following table sets for th for the periods 
indicated the high and low sale prices for the Company’s
Common Stock.

High Low

1998
Fourth Quarter $14.19 $ 5.13
Third Quarter 21.00 7.81
Second Quarter 16.81 11.00
First Quarter 33.81 13.19

1997
Fourth Quarter $51.38 $21.00
Third Quarter 54.25 30.50
Second Quarter 35.50 22.50
First Quarter 37.68 24.00

As of March 1, 1999, there were 14,804,375 shares of
Common Stock outstanding and 406 holders of record
of the Common Stock.

The Company has never paid cash dividends on its
capital stock. The Company’s bank credit agreement
prohibits the payment of cash dividends without the 
consent of the lender thereunder. See Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company 
currently anticipates that it will retain all available funds
for use in the operation and expansion of its business,
and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected financial data are derived from the Financial Statements of ANADIGICS. The data should be

read in conjunction with Item 10. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and the Financial Statements, related Notes and other financial information included herein.

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except share and per share data) 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

Statement of Operations Data: 
Net sales $34,832 $51,460 $68,864 $102,536 $ 86,075
Cost of sales 18,454 24,995 38,887 56,093 66,228

Gross profit 16,378 26,465 29,977 46,443 19,847
Research and development 9,195 11,733 12,036 16,765 18,824
Selling and administrative expense 4,530 6,640 8,206 12,139 12,926
Restructuring charges 7,126

Operating income (loss) 2,653 8,092 9,735 17,539 (19,029)
Interest expense 831 573 371 155 79
Interest income 343 1,301 1,739 3,384 2,375

Income (loss) before income taxes 2,165 8,820 11,103 20,768 (16,733)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes(1) 300 1,527 (888) 5,439 (7,175)

Net income (loss)(1) $ 1,865 $ 7,293 $11,991 $ 15,329 $ (9,558)

Diluted earnings per share(1)(2) $ 0.23 $ 0.64 $ 0.93 $ 1.02 $ (0.65)

Weighted average common and dilutive securities outstanding(2) 8,260,430 11,374,745 12,907,851 15,063,879 14,723,941

At December 31,

(In thousands) 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $11,349 $35,953 $37,825 $ 65,061 $ 57,123
Total assets 30,885 66,250 86,996 168,084 154,098
Current maturities of capital lease obligations 3,829 1,718 1,292 425 229
Capital lease obligations, less current portion 2,807 1,919 627 389 183
Current maturities of long-term debt 1,000
Long-term debt, less current portion 4,000
Total stockholders’ equity 20,520 53,823 70,557 146,463 137,807

(1) Includes recognition of a net deferred tax benefit of approximately $1.2 million (diluted earnings per share $0.11), $3.6 million (diluted earnings per share of $0.28)
and $1.9 million (diluted earnings per share of $0.13) in 1995, 1996 and 1997, respectively. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Results of Operations—1997 Compared to 1996 and Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8.—Financial
Statement and Supplementary Data.

(2) The earnings per share amounts prior to 1997 have been restated as required to comply with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per
Share. For fur ther discussion of earnings per share and the impact of Statement No. 128, see the notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8.—
Financial Statement and Supplementary Data.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations.

Results  of  Operations
The following table sets forth statements of operations

data as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 56.5 54.7 76.9

Gross profit 43.5 45.3 23.1
Research and development 17.5 16.4 21.9
Selling and administrative 

expense 11.9 11.8 15.0
Restructuring charges 8.3

Operating income (loss) 14.1 17.1 (22.1)
Interest expense 0.5 0.2 0.1
Interest income 2.5 3.3 2.8
Income (loss) before 

income taxes 16.1 20.2 (19.4)
Provision (benefit) for 

income taxes (1.3) 5.3 (8.3)

Net income (loss) 17.4% 14.9% (11.1)%

1998 Compared to 1997
NET SALES. Net sales during 1998 decreased 16% to

$86.1 million from $102.5 million in 1997. Net sales con-
sist of product sales and engineering service sales. Net
product sales decreased 15% to $85.4 million in 1998
from $101.0 in 1997. Engineering service sales, which
reflect customers’ contributions to research and develop-
ment, decreased 54% during 1998 to $0.7 million from
$1.5 million in 1997.

Sales of integrated circuits for cellular and PCS applica-
tions decreased 44% during 1998 to $33.7 million from
$59.7 million during 1997. The lower demand was due
to several factors, including increased competition, a shift
in demand to lower cost phones not using the
Company’s par ts, customer delays in ramp-up of new
generation dual-band phones using the Company’s new
par ts, and in par t, to the effect of the Asian financial 
crisis on the wireless communications markets.

Sales of integrated circuits for cable and broadcast
applications increased 36% during 1998 to $28.3 million
from $20.8 million in 1997. The increase in sales of inte-
grated circuits for cable and broadcast applications during
1998 was due to increases in demand for the Company’s
integrated circuits used in digital set-top converters and
cable modems, and the Company’s integrated circuit line
amplifier used as a repeater in hybrid fiber coaxial distri-
bution networks.

Sales of integrated circuits for fiber optic telecommuni-
cation and data communication applications increased

53% during 1998 to $17.6 million from $11.5 million in
1997. The increase was primarily due to an increase in
demand for transimpedence amplifiers for Synchronous
Optical Network (SONET) fiber optic telecommunica-
tions applications and sales of a new family of integrated
circuits for data communication applications. The
Company expects increased price competition for lower
data rate fiber optic telecommunications products from
other silicon-based solution providers during 1999.

Sales of integrated circuits for direct broadcast satellite
applications decreased 36% during 1998 to $5.7 million
from $9.0 million in 1997. During the third quar ter of
1998, the Company decided to cease production of its
low noise block (“LNB”) conver ter integrated circuits
that were used in DBS applications because of reduced
demand for LNB converter integrated circuits and the
effects of the Asian financial crisis.

Generally, selling prices for same product sales were
lower during 1998 compared to 1997.

GROSS MARGIN. Gross margin during 1998 declined
to 23.1% from 45.3% in 1997. The reduction in gross
margin was primarily due to increased inventory
reserves, including a special charge of $6.6 million 
(substantially all of which was scrapped prior to
December 31, 1998) and accelerated depreciation
charges (related to the planned closing of the Company’s
existing wafer fabrication facility) of $2.7 million that
were recorded during 1998. The inventory special
charges consisted of the following: $3.4 million of older
generation, single-band power amplif ier integrated 
circuits used in cellular applications, $2.1 million of 
LNB integrated circuits used in DBS applications, and
$1.1 million of older generation line amplifiers used in
CATV applications. The Company was aggressively
attempting to sell these integrated circuits in certain mar-
kets (primarily secondary communications markets in
Asia). The Company experienced limited success in sell-
ing these integrated circuits during 1998 and reevaluated
its selling effor ts and the potential markets for these
products during 1998. Based upon this reevaluation, the
Company decided that it would curtail its efforts to sell
these products.

Lower factory utilization and higher fixed costs associ-
ated with the Company’s new test and manufacturing
administration facilities placed into service during the
second quarter of 1998 also contributed to the reduc-
tion in gross margin during 1998, compared to 1997.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT. Company sponsored
research and development expenses increased 12% 
during 1998 to $18.8 million from $16.8 million in 1997.
The increase was primarily attributable to increased
research and development of integrated circuits for fiber
optic and cellular and PCS applications. As a percent of
sales, company funded research and development
increased to 21.9% during 1998 from 16.4% in 1997. The
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Company expects to spend approximately $24.0 million
in research and development expense during 1999.

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling and adminis-
trative expenses increased 6% during 1998 to $12.9 mil-
lion from $12.1 million in 1997. The increase was due in
part to executive relocation costs, an increase in operat-
ing costs associated with the Company’s information sys-
tems, and other consulting costs. As a percentage of
sales, selling and administrative expenses increased to
15.0% during 1998 from 11.8% in 1997.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES. In connection with the
Company’s plan to lower manufacturing costs and
streamline its manufacturing operations, the Company
recorded restructuring charges totaling $7.1 million 
during 1998. The restructuring charges consisted of
writedowns of impaired assets of $4.5 million, reductions
in force of $1.6 million, and wafer fabrication facility 
shutdown and removal costs of $1.0 million.

Write-downs of Impaired Assets. The Company evalu-
ated the on-going value of certain assets. Based upon this
evaluation, the Company plans to dispose of cer tain
assets with a carrying amount of $4.6 million and esti-
mated the sales value, net of related costs to sell, at $0.1
million. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment
loss of $4.5 million, which consisted of the following items
(in millions):

Write-down of assets associated with 
the conversion of the new wafer fabrication 
facility from 4-inch to 6-inch wafers $2.2

Write-down of assets associated 
with the closure of the Company’s 
in-house assembly operations 1.0

Write-off of software, in connection 
with the Company’s on-going information 
systems improvements 0.8

Unused production assets previously 
used in the production of DBS LNB 
converter integrated circuits 0.5

Total write-down on impairment of 
long-lived assets $4.5

Reductions in Force. The Company recorded charges
of $1.1 million during the first quarter of 1998 and $0.5
million during the fourth quarter of 1998 associated with
reductions in its workforce. The workforce reduction
charges primarily consisted of severance pay, extended
medical coverage, and outplacement service costs for
approximately 165 employees primarily involved in the
Company’s production operations. Approximately $1.1
million of severance pay, extended medical coverage, and
outplacement service costs were paid through December
31, 1998 for the termination of approximately 120
employees. The remaining liability of $0.5 million is
expected to be paid during the first half of 1999.

Facility Shutdown and Removal Costs. The Company
recorded charges of $1.0 million associated with the
shutdown and removal of its existing wafer fabrication
facility. (See “MANUFACTURING, ASSEMBLY AND
TESTING” contained in Item 1.—BUSINESS)

INTEREST INCOME, NET. Interest income, net
decreased 29% during 1998 to $2.3 million from $3.2
million in 1997. The reduction in interest income, net of
$0.9 million was primarily due to a lower amount of
investments during 1998 (caused by plant and equipment
purchases that were primarily for the Company’s new
wafer fabrication facility), compared to 1997.

BENEFIT FOR INCOME TAXES. The Company
recorded a benefit for income taxes during 1998 of 
$7.2 million, or 42.9% of the loss before income taxes.
The benefit for income taxes primarily related to the
1998 federal and state net operating losses, federal 
and state research and development credits, and state
manufacturing credits, all of which the Company plans to
carry forward.

1997 Compared to 1996
NET SALES. Net sales during 1997 increased 49% to

$102.5 million from $68.9 million in 1996. Net sales 
consist of product sales and engineering service 
sales. Net product sales increased 54% to $101.0 million 
from $65.7 million in 1996. Engineering service sales
decreased 51% during 1997 to $1.5 million from $3.2
million in 1996.

Sales of integrated circuits for cellular and PCS applica-
tions increased 144% during 1997 to $59.7 million from
$24.5 million in 1996 as a result of higher volumes.
During 1997, the Company sold power amplifier integrated
circuits for all three major wireless digital standards,
including GSM, TDMA and CDMA. As a percentage of
total sales, sales of integrated circuits for the GSM,
TDMA, and CDMA frequency bands were approxi-
mately 37%, 24%, and 28%, respectively in 1997. Sales of
integrated circuits for cable television applications in 1997
increased 51% to $20.8 million from $13.8 million in
1996 as demand for integrated circuits used in set top
converters and cable modems increased.

Sales of integrated circuits for fiber optic SONET, SDH
and ATM telecommunication applications decreased 1%
during 1997 to $11.5 million from $11.6 million in 1996.
Sales of integrated circuits for DBS television applications
decreased 43% during 1997 to $9.0 million from $15.8
million in 1996 as demand from European manufacturers
of DBS equipment for the European market decreased.

Generally, selling prices for same product sales were
lower in 1997 compared to 1996.

GROSS MARGIN. Gross margin during 1997 increased
to 45.3% from 43.5% in 1996. The increase was due to
manufacturing efficiencies, which resulted in par t from
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the conversion from three-inch wafers used in 1996 to
four-inch wafers used during 1997, higher production
volume and improved production yields. These factors
were partially offset by additional costs associated with
assembly and packaging quality problems on cer tain
products that were incurred during the fourth quarter of
1997 and a shift in sales mix to lower margin products
during 1997, compared to 1996.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT. Company sponsored
research and development expense increased 39% 
during 1997 to $16.8 million from $12.0 million during
1996. The increase was primarily attributable to
increased research and development of integrated cir-
cuits for cellular, PCS, and other wireless applications. As
a percentage of sales, these expenses declined to 16.4%
during 1997 from 17.5% during 1996.

During 1997, approximately two-thirds of the
Company’s research and development expenses were
for the development of integrated circuits for cellular,
PCS and other wireless applications, compared to
approximately one-half in 1996.

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling and adminis-
trative expenses increased 48% during 1997 to $12.1
million from $8.2 million during 1996. As a percentage of
sales, these expenses declined during 1997 to 11.8%
from 11.9% during 1996. Administrative expenses
increased 64% in 1997 due in part to increased compen-
sation, recruiting and training costs. Selling expenses
increased by 32% in 1997 due to staffing increases pri-
marily associated with the expansion of the Company’s
wireless integrated circuit sales efforts, increased consult-
ing fees, and increased sales commission expense.

INTEREST INCOME, NET. Interest income increased
$1.7 million during 1997 to $3.4 million from $1.7 million
during 1996. The increase was due to higher invested
cash balances following the receipt of proceeds from the
public offering of the Company’s common stock in
February, 1997. Interest expense decreased by $0.2 dur-
ing 1997 to $0.2 million from $0.4 million during 1996 on
lower levels of indebtedness.

PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES. The pro-
vision for income taxes during 1997 was $5.4 million, or
26.2% of pre-tax income. The benefit for income taxes
in 1996 was $0.9 million, or 8% of pre-tax income. The
provision for income taxes in 1997 included a $1.9 million
reduction in the valuation allowance (which is explained
below), which had been recorded prior to 1997 with
respect to deferred tax assets (primarily federal net
operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards). The benefit for
income taxes in 1996 arose from a $5.2 million reduction
in the valuation allowance, which had been recorded
prior to 1996 with respect to deferred tax assets 
(primarily NOL carryforwards).

As of December 31, 1996, the Company had net
deferred tax assets of approximately $15.7 million, which
primarily consisted of federal NOL carryforwards of
$12.6 million and general business credit carryforwards
of $0.8 million. A valuation allowance of $10.8 million
was provided for the federal NOLs and general business
credit carryforwards as of December 31, 1996. As of
December 31, 1997, the Company had net deferred tax
assets of approximately $3.5 million and no valuation
allowance.

The reductions in the net deferred tax assets and 
the valuation allowance from 1996 to 1997 primarily
resulted from; (1) the Company’s determination that 
cer tain pre-1989 federal NOL and general business
credit carryforwards that were severely restricted under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code would not be
utilized prior to their expiration, and (2) the results of an
Internal Revenue Service examination completed in 1997
which resolved uncer tainties regarding possible limita-
tions of federal NOL carryforwards and general business
credit carryforwards generated between 1989 and 1992.
The Company had been providing taxes in 1996 and
prior years as if the use of these federal NOLs and 
general business carryforwards were restricted.

The reduction in the pre-1989 NOLs and general
business credit carryforwards noted above had no effect
on net income. The reduction in the federal NOLs and
general business credit carryforwards generated
between 1989 and 1992 resulted in a reduction of the
current federal provision for income tax expense. The
effect of this reduction was an increase in net income in
1997 of approximately $1.9 million.

Liquidi ty  and Sources of  Capi tal
At December 31, 1998 the Company had $24.0 

million of cash and cash equivalents on hand and $18.4
million in marketable securities. The Company drew
down $5.0 million under its credit facility on December
30, 1998 and entered into an interest rate swap agree-
ment, which effectively fixes the interest rate on this por-
tion of the credit facility. Borrowings of $5.0 million
remained outstanding under the Company’s credit 
facility as of December 31, 1998.

The Company’s $20.0 million revolving bank credit
facility provides for interest at the bank’s base rate minus
25 basis points or, at the Company’s discretion, other
market-based rates. The Company also has the option to
swap the floating rate for a fixed rate loan at the time of
draw down. The draw down period expires on July 1,
1999. Any drawdowns may be paid over a term of up to
sixty months. Its availability is subject to a number of
financial covenants. Under this facility, the payment of
dividends, among other things, requires approval by the
bank. Substantially all of the assets of the Company are
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pledged as security for the repayment of amounts drawn
under this revolving bank credit facility.

Operations generated $10.0 million in cash during
1998 and investing activities used $17.2 million of cash
during 1998. Capital expenditures of $24.4 million were
made during 1998 and net sales of marketable securities
were $7.2 million during 1998. The capital expenditures
primarily consisted of equipment and leasehold improve-
ments for the Company’s new wafer fabrication facility
and related manufacturing areas. The Company plans to
continue activities associated with qualifying its new
wafer fabrication facility during the first half of 1999 and
anticipates commencing full-scale production during the
second half of 1999.

Net cash generated by financing activities was $5.5
million during 1998 as the Company drew down $5.0
million on its $20 million credit facility at the end of 1998.

At December 31, 1998 the Company had committed
to purchase approximately $10.0 million of equipment
and leasehold improvements. During 1999, the
Company expects to spend approximately $15.0 million
on equipment and approximately $2.0 million on lease-
hold improvements.

In 1998, income taxes paid were $3.1 million, while
the benefit for income taxes was $7.2 million. The bene-
fit for income taxes of $7.2 million includes a deferred
benefit of $6.8 million.

The Company believes that its sources of capital,
including internally generated funds and $15.0 million
available under its $20.0 million existing credit facility, will
be adequate to satisfy anticipated capital needs (including
investments in other companies) for the next twelve
months. However, the Company may nevertheless elect
to finance all or part of its future capital requirements
through additional equity or debt financing. There can be
no assurance that such additional financing would be
available on satisfactory terms.

Impact of  Year 2000
The Year 2000 Issue is the result of computer 

programs being written using two digits rather than four
to define the applicable year. Any of the Company’s
computer programs or hardware that have date-sensitive
software or embedded chips may recognize a date using
“00” as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This
could result in a system failure or miscalculations causing
disruptions of operations, including, among other things,
a temporary inability to process transactions, send
invoices, or engage in similar normal business activities.

The Company has determined that it will need to
modify or replace significant portions of its software so
that its computer systems will function properly with
respect to dates in the year 2000 and beyond. The
Company presently believes that with modifications to

existing software and conversions to new software, the
Year 2000 issue will not pose significant operational
problems for its computer systems. However, if such
modifications and conversions are not made, or are not
completed timely, the Year 2000 issue could have a
material impact on the operations of the Company. The
Company has initiated formal communications with all of
its signif icant suppliers, large customers and financial
institutions to ensure that those parties have appropriate
plans to remediate Year 2000 issues where their systems
interface with the Company’s systems or otherwise
impact its operations. The Company is assessing the
extent to which its operations are vulnerable should
those organizations fail to remediate properly their 
computer systems.

The Company’s comprehensive Year 2000 initiative 
is being managed by a senior team of internal staff and
outside consultants. The team’s activities are designed to
ensure that there is no adverse effect on the Company’s
core business operations and that transactions with 
customers, suppliers, and financial institutions are fully
supported. The Company is well under way with these
effor ts, which are scheduled to be completed in mid
1999. The total cost of the Year 2000 project is estimated
at $2.0 million and is being funded through operating
cash flows. Of the total project cost, approximately one-
half is attributable to the purchase of new hardware and
software, which will be capitalized. To date, the
Company has spent approximately $0.3 million on hard-
ware and software purchases and the remaining amount
represents equipment purchases expected to be delivered
and installed during the second quar ter of 1999. The
remaining one-half will primarily be for assessment of the
Year 2000 issue, development of a modification plan,
remediation and modifications to existing software and
will be expensed when incurred. To date, the Company
has incurred and expensed approximately $0.2 million,
primarily for assessment of the Year 2000 issue, develop-
ment of a modification plan, and initial remediation
effor ts. The remaining amount is expected to be
expensed in the second quarter of 1999.

While the Company believes its effor ts will be 
adequate to address its Year 2000 concerns, there can
be no guarantee that the systems of other companies on
which the Company’s systems and operations rely will be
converted on a timely basis and will not have a material
effect on the Company. The Company has determined 
it has no exposure to contingencies related to the 
Year 2000 issue for the products it has sold.
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Impact of  Recently  Issued 
Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, which is required to be adopted in years
beginning after June 15, 1999. The Statement permits
early adoption as of the beginning of any fiscal quarter
after its issuance. The Company expects to adopt the
new Statement effective January 1, 2000. The Statement
will require the Company to recognize all derivatives on
the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not
hedges must be adjusted to fair value through income. If
a derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of the
hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative will
either be offset against the change in fair value of the
hedged asset, liability, or firm commitment through earn-
ings, or recognized in other comprehensive income until
the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective
por tion of a derivative’s change in fair value will be
immediately recognized in earnings. The Company does
not anticipate that the adoption of this Statement will
have a significant effect on its results of operations or
financial position.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates
primarily from its credit facility and its investments 
in cer tain available-for-sale securities. To date, the
Company has managed its exposure to changes in inter-
est rates from its credit facility by entering into interest
rate swap agreements which allow the Company to 
conver t its debt from variable to fixed interest rates. 
The Company plans to continue to reduce its exposure
to changes in interest rates from its credit facility by using
interest rate derivative instruments. The Company’s
available-for-sale securities consist of fixed income invest-
ments (U.S. Treasury and Agency securities and short-
term commercial paper). The Company continually
monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates from
its available-for-sale securities. Accordingly, the Company
believes that the effects of changes in interest rates are
limited and would not have a material impact on its
financial condition or results of operations. However, it is
possible that the Company is at risk if interest rates
change in an unfavorable direction. The magnitude of any
gain or loss will be a function of the difference between
the fixed rate of the financial instrument and the market
rate and the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations could be materially affected.

Item 8. Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data

Report of  Independent Audi tors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
ANADIGICS, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets of ANADIGICS, Inc. as of December 31,
1997 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1998. Our audit also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 14(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment . Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with gener-
ally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement . An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of ANADIGICS, Inc. as of
December 31, 1997 and 1998, and the consolidated
results of their operations, comprehensive income and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, 
the related financial statement schedule, when consid-
ered in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

MetroPark, New Jersey
January 25, 1999
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 1997 1998

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,675 $ 23,987
Marketable securities 15,826 16,923
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$396 and $128 in 1997 and 1998, respectively 17,999 11,848
Inventories 19,678 8,729
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,470 2,531
Deferred taxes 4,461 4,345

Total current assets 85,109 68,363
Marketable securities 9,801 1,486
Plant and equipment:

Equipment and furniture 58,916 71,625
Leasehold improvements 4,212 15,717
Projects in process 39,540 34,286

102,668 121,628
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 30,419 44,199

72,249 77,429
Deferred taxes — 5,955
Deposits 925 865

$168,084 $154,098

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 11,223 $ 6,138
Accrued liabilities 5,961 2,306
Income taxes payable 2,439 —
Current maturities of capital lease obligations 425 229
Accrued restructuring costs — 1,567
Current maturities of long-term debt — 1,000

Total current liabilities 20,048 11,240
Deferred taxes 959 —
Capital lease obligations, less current portion 389 183
Other long-term liabilities 225 868
Long-term debt, less current portion — 4,000
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 
none issued or outstanding

Common stock, convertible, non-voting, $0.01 par value, 
1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 34,000,000 shares authorized, 
14,657,089 and 14,738,356 issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 1997 and 1998, respectively 147 147

Additional paid-in capital 159,319 160,215
Accumulated deficit (13,040) (22,598)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 37 43

Total stockholders’ equity 146,463 137,807

$168,084 $154,098

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 1996 1997 1998

Net sales $68,864 $102,536 $ 86,075
Cost of sales 38,887 56,093 66,228

Gross profit 29,977 46,443 19,847
Research and development expenses 12,036 16,765 18,824
Selling and administrative expenses 8,206 12,139 12,926
Restructuring charges 7,126

20,242 28,904 38,876

Operating income (loss) 9,735 17,539 (19,029)
Interest income, net 1,368 3,229 2,296

Income (loss) before income taxes 11,103 20,768 (16,733)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (888) 5,439 (7,175)

Net income (loss) $11,991 $ 15,329 (9,558)

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.97 $ 1.07 $ (0.65)

Weighted average common shares outstanding 12,355,311 14,279,957 14,723,941

Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.93 $ 1.02 $ (0.65)

Weighted average common and dilutive securities outstanding 12,907,851 15,063,879 14,723,941

See accompanying notes.

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 1996 1997 1998

Net income (loss) $11,991 $15,329 $(9,558)
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities (18) 46 6

Total comprehensive income (loss) $11,973 $15,375 $(9,552)

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common Accumulated
Stock Common Additional Other Total

Common Convertible Stock Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
(Dollars in thousands) Stock Non-Voting Subscribed Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity

Balance, December 31, 1995 $ 116 $5 $(3) $ 94,056 $ (40,360) $ 9 $ 53,823
Exercise of warrants 3 3,607 3,610
Conversion of non-voting 

Common Stock to Common Stock 5 (5)
Stock options exercised 1 366 367
Repayment of employee receivables 3 3
Shares issued under employee 

stock purchase plan 1 780 781
Unrealized losses on marketable 

securities, net of tax (18) (18)
Net income 11,991 11,991

Balance, December 31, 1996 126 — — 98,809 (28,369) (9) 70,557
Issuance of Common Stock in 

public offering, net of expenses 19 55,327 55,346
Stock options exercised 2 1,700 1,702
Shares issued under employee 

stock purchase plan 978 978
Tax effect of stock options 

exercised 2,505 2,505
Unrealized gains on 

marketable securities 46 46
Net income 15,329 15,329

Balance, December 31, 1997 147 — — 159,319 (13,040) 37 146,463
Stock options exercised 402 402
Shares issued under employee 

stock purchase plan 425 425
Tax effect of stock options 

exercised 69 69
Unrealized gains on 

marketable securities 6 6
Net loss (9,558) (9,558)

Balance, December 31, 1998 $147 — — $160,215 $(22,598) $43 $137,807

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 1996 1997 1998

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 11,991 $ 15,329 $ (9,558)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,865 7,644 14,409
Amortization 2,323 945 707
Impairment of long-lived assets (non-cash) 4,510
Write-down of inventory 6,603
Deferred taxes (3,614) 1,328 (6,798)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (3,317) (7,303) 6,151
Inventory (166) (10,777) 4,346
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (240) (249) (1,061)
Deposits (215) (430) 60
Accounts payable 4,502 4,050 (5,085)
Income taxes payable 1,584 1,268 (2,439)
Accrued liabilities (356) 2,515 (1,644)

Net cash provided by operating activities 16,357 14,320 10,201

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (16,444) (52,105) (24,607)
Purchase of marketable securities (15,453) (43,768) (24,145)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 29,233 27,149 31,369

Net cash used in investing activities (2,664) (68,724) (17,383)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payment of obligations under capital leases (1,718) (1,105) (402)
Borrowings of long-term debt 5,000
Exercise of warrants 3,610
Issuances of common stock 1,130 58,072 896
Proceeds of common stock subscribed 3

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,025 56,967 5,494

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16,718 2,563 (1,688)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6,394 23,112 25,675

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 23,112 $ 25,675 $ 23,987

Interest paid $ 343 $ 155 $ 72

Taxes paid $ 1,142 $ 2,843 $ 3,132

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of  Operations and Basis  of
Presentat ion

ANADIGICS, Inc. (the “Company”) is a leading supplier
of radio frequency (“RF”) integrated circuit solutions for
the communications markets. The Company’s products
are used to receive and transmit signals in a variety of
broadband and wireless communications applications.
The Company’s effor ts in the broadband area are
focused applications for cable television systems
(“CATV”) and fiber optic communications systems. In
the wireless area the Company’s effor ts are directed
towards applications in cellular telephone and personal
communication systems (“PCS”). The Company designs,
develops and manufactures its integrated circuits primarily
using gallium arsenide (“GaAs”) semiconductor material.
GaAs offers cer tain advantages in RF/microwave 
applications including the integration of numerous
RF/microwave functions which cannot be easily inte-
grated in silicon-based circuits. The Company’s high 
frequency integrated circuits can typically replace 30 to
100 discrete components, permitting manufacturers 
of end products to reduce the size and weight of 
their products, increase power efficiency, improve relia-
bility, reduce manufacturing time and cost and enhance
system performance.

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
subsidiary, ANADIGICS Foreign Sales Corporation. All
significant inter-company accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Concentrat ion of  Credi t  Risk
The Company grants trade credit to its customers,

which are primarily foreign manufacturers of wireless
communication devices, cable and broadcast television
receivers and fiber optic communication devices. The
Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its cus-
tomers and generally does not require collateral. Accounts
receivable from customers are denominated in U.S. dol-
lars. The Company has not experienced significant losses
related to receivables from individual customers.

Approximately 45% of the Company’s net sales in
1996 were to three customers, accounting for 16%, 16%,
and 12% of net sales. Approximately 62% of the
Company’s net sales in 1997 were to three customers,
accounting for 33%, 16% and 13% of net sales.
Approximately 51% of the Company’s net sales in 1998
were to two customers, accounting for 34% and 17% of
net sales; accounts receivable from these customers
accounted for 64% of total accounts receivable at
December 31, 1998. Net sales to individual customers
who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s total
net sales and corresponding end application information
are as follows:
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Year Ended December 31,

1996 Application 1997 Application 1998 Application

Largest customer $11,283 CATV $33,935 Wireless* $29,173 Wireless*
Second largest customer 11,127 Wireless* 16,792 Wireless* 14,664 CATV
Third largest customer 8,404 Wireless* 12,851 CATV
*Wireless includes net sales of integrated circuits for cellular and PCS applications.

Use of  Est imates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the repor ting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recogni t ion
Production revenue is recorded when products are

shipped to customers. Revenues under customer-funded
research and development contracts, which are
recorded relative to the deliverables and other contrac-
tual obligations were $3,193 in 1996, $1,566 in 1997, and
$715 in 1998, and are included in net sales on the con-
solidated statements of operations. The costs associated
with the customer-funded research and development
contracts approximates the revenue recorded and are

included in cost of sales on the consolidated statements
of operations.

Warranty Costs
The Company provides, by a current charge to

income, an amount it estimates will be needed to cover
future warranty obligations for products sold during the
year. The accrued liability for warranty costs is included
in Accrued Liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet .

Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal  Use

All direct internal and external costs incurred in 
connection with the designing of software configuration
and software interface, installing hardware and testing
systems are capitalized. All other costs associated with
internal use software are expensed when incurred.
Amounts capitalized are amor tized on a straight-line
basis over three years.
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Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost . Depreciation

of plant and equipment has been provided on the
straight-line method over 3-5 years.

The cost of equipment acquired under capital leases
was $13,045 and $11,987 at December 31, 1997 and
1998, respectively, and accumulated amor tization was
$11,941 and $11,639 at December 31, 1997 and 1998,
respectively. Equipment acquired under a capital lease is
amortized over the useful life of the leased equipment or
the life of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of tem-

porary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Research and Development Costs
The Company charges all research and development

costs associated with the development of new products
to expense when incurred. Engineering and design costs
related to customer-funded research and development
contracts are classified as cost of sales.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers as cash equivalents all highly

liquid marketable securities with an original maturity of
three months or less.

Marketable Securi t ies
Available for sale securities are stated at fair value,

with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported
in other comprehensive income or loss. The cost of secu-
rities sold is based upon the specific identification method.
The amor tized cost of debt securities is adjusted for
amortization of premium and accretion of discounts to
maturity. Such amor tization, realized gains and losses,
interest and dividends are included in interest income.

Stock-Based Compensation
As permitted by FASB Statement No. 123,

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (FASB 123),
the Company has elected to follow Accounting Principal
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations in
accounting for its employee stock option plans. Under
APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized at the
time of option grant because the exercise price of the
Company’s employee stock option equals the fair market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Impairment of  Long-Lived Assets
The Company records impairment losses on long-lived

assets used in operations or expected to be disposed
when events and circumstances indicate that the undis-
counted cash flows estimated to be generated by these
assets are less than the carrying amounts of those assets
(See Note 12.–RESTRUCTURING CHARGES)

Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated in

accordance with FASB Statement No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share”. All earnings per share amounts for all periods
have been presented, and where appropriate, restated
to conform to the requirements of FASB 128.

Comprehensive Income
Effective January 1, 1998, the Company adopted FASB

Statement No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income
(“FASB 130”). FASB 130 establishes new rules for the
reporting and display of comprehensive income (or loss)
and its components in the financial statements. The
adoption of FASB 130 had no effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations. Statement 130
requires unrealized gains (losses) on the Company’s
available-for-sale securities, which previously were
reported in stockholders’ equity, to be included in other
comprehensive income and the disclosure of total com-
prehensive income.

Reclass i f icat ions
Certain amounts as of December 31, 1997 have been

reclassif ied to conform with the December 31, 1998
presentation.

Impact of  Recently  Issued 
Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities. The Company expects to adopt the new
Statement effective January 1, 2000. The Statement will
require the Company to recognize all derivatives on 
the balance sheet at fair value. The Company does not
anticipate that the adoption of this Statement will have 
a signif icant effect on its results of operations or 
financial position.

2. Investments
The following is a summary of available-for-sale 

securities:
Available-for-Sale Securities

Gross Estimated
Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Value

U.S Treasury and
Agency Securities $ 2,117 $ 7 $ 2,124

U.S. Corporate Securities 16,249 36 16,285

Total at December 31, 1998 $18,366 $43 $18,409

U.S Treasury and
Agency Securities $ 8,058 $ 5 $ 8,063

U.S. Corporate Securities 17,532 32 17,564

Total at December 31, 1997 $ 25,590 $37 $ 25,627
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt
and marketable equity securities at December 31, 1998,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
the issuers of the securities may have the right to prepay
obligations without prepayment penalties.

Available-for-Sale Securities

Estimated
Fair

Cost Value

Due in one year or less $16,900 $16,923
Due after one year 

through three years 1,466 1,486

Total $18,366 $18,409

3. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first in-

first out method) or market . Inventories consist of the
following:

December 31,

1997 1998

Raw materials $ 1,670 $ 784
Work in process 12,054 3,662
Finished goods 5,954 4,283

$19,678 $8,729

4. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,

1997 1998

Accrued compensation $4,599 $ 842
Warranty reserve 550 304
Other 812 1,160

$5,961 $2,306

5. Leases
The Company leases manufacturing, warehousing and

office space under noncancelable operating leases that
expire through 2016. The Company also leases certain
equipment under capital leases that expire through 2000.
Rent expense was $1,810, $1,640 and $3,148 in 1996,
1997 and 1998, respectively. The future minimum lease 

payments under the noncancelable operating leases and
the present value of the minimum capital lease payments
are as follows:

Capital Operating
Year Leases Leases

1999 $253 $ 2,377
2000 190 2,531
2001 2,576
2002 2,640
2003 2,533
Thereafter 25,581

Total minimum lease payments 443 $38,238

Less amount representing interest 31

Present value of net minimum 
lease payments $412

6. Earnings Per Share
The reconciliation of shares used to calculate basic and

diluted earnings per share consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Weighted average 
common shares 
outstanding used 
to calculate basic 
earnings per share 12,355,311 14,279,957 14,723,941

Net effect of dilutive 
stock options—
based on treasury 
stock method 
using average 
market price 552,540 783,922 —*

Weighted average 
common and 
dilutive securities 
outstanding used 
to calculate diluted 
earnings per share 12,907,851 15,063,879 14,723,941

*The dilutive stock options are not included as their effect is anti-dilutive.

7. Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information
Effective January 1, 1998, the Company adopted

Statement No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information (“FASB 131”). FASB
131 establishes standards for repor ting information
about operating segments in annual financial statements
and requires that those enterprises report selected infor-
mation about operating segments in interim financial
reports to shareholders. It also establishes standards for
related disclosures about products and services, geo-
graphic areas, and major customers.
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Factors Management Used to Identify the 
Company’s Reportable Segment

The Company believes it operates in one segment .
Since all of the Company’s integrated circuits are manu-
factured using the same manufacturing facilities located in
the same geographic area, all operating expenses and
assets of the Company are combined and reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker on an enterprise-wide
basis, resulting in no additional discrete financial informa-
tion or reportable segment information.

The Company classifies its revenues based upon the
end application of the product in which its integrated cir-
cuits are used. Net sales by end application are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker and are
as follows:

Year ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Cellular and 
PCS Applications $24,501 $ 59,676 $33,716

CATV Applications 13,822 20,848 28,327
Fiber Optic Applications 11,579 11,457 17,582
Direct Broadcast Satellite 

Applications 15,769 8,989 5,735
Engineering service sales 3,193 1,566 715

Total $68,864 $102,536 $86,075

Geographic Information
The Company primarily sells to four geographic

regions; Europe, Asia, Nor th America, and South
America. The geographic region is determined by the
destination of the shipped product . Net sales to each of
the four geographic regions are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Europe $24,819 $32,097 $20,459
Asia 19,836 26,142 24,470
North America 24,209 44,297 36,416
South America — — 4,730

$68,864 $102,536 $86,075

8. Stockholders’ Equity
The Company has warrants outstanding, which entitle

holders to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock at
an exercise price of $10.38 per share. The warrants
become exercisable one year from the date of grant, or
November 17, 1999, and expire on November 17, 2001.
None of these warrants were exercisable as of
December 31, 1998.

The Company has additional warrants outstanding
which entitle the holder to purchase 22,500 shares of
common stock at exercise prices ranging from $21.50 to
$48.25 per share, all of which are exercisable as of
December 31, 1998. The warrants expire between
September of 2001 and 2003.

9. Income Taxes
The components of the provision (benefit) for income

taxes are as follows:
Year ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Current provision:
Federal $ 2,726 $3,780 $ (377)
State 331

Deferred provision 
(benefit):

Federal (3,214) 826 (5,316)
State (400) 502 (1,482)

Total $ (888) $5,439 $(7,175)

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1997 and
1998 are as follows:

December 31,

1997 1998

Current:
Accruals/reserves $ 4,193 $ 3,926
Net operating loss carryforwards 419
Research and development credits 268

4,461 4,345
Long-term:

Net operating loss carryforwards 107 4,211
General business and research and 

development credits 268 1,350
Deferred rent expense 332
Difference in basis of plant 

and equipment (1,334) 62

Net long-term deferred tax assets 
(liabilities) (959) 5,955

Net deferred tax assets $ 3,502 $10,300

As of December 31, 1998, the Company has net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $12,000
for both federal and state tax reporting purposes. The
federal carryforward will expire in 2018, and the state
carryforwards will expire in 2005.
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The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the U.S. federal statutory rate to the provision (benefit) for
income taxes is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998

Tax at U.S. statutory rate $ 3,775 34.0% $ 7,268 35.0% $(5,857) (35.0)%
Change in federal valuation allowance (4,673) (42.1) (1,913) (9.2)
Tax benefit of foreign sales corporation (472) (2.3)
State tax expense (benefit), net of Federal tax effect 542 2.6 (963) (5.8)
Other 10 0.1 14 0.1 (355) (2.1)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (888) (8.0)% $ 5,439 26.2% $(7,175) (42.9)%

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I

10. Long-Term Debt, Credit Facility and 
Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The Company has a secured $20,000 revolving credit
facility under which $5,000 was drawn down on
December 30, 1998 and was outstanding as of
December 31, 1998. The $5,000 consists of a term-loan
that requires equal principal repayments of $250 due
quarterly through December 31, 2003, plus interest .

Interest on the credit facility is calculated at LIBOR
plus 1.75%. The LIBOR rate was 5.34% at December 31,
1998. The Company enters into interest rate swap
agreements to manage its exposure to interest rate
movements by effectively converting its debt from vari-
able to fixed rates. Maturity dates of the interest rate
swap agreements will generally match those of the
underlying debt or financial arrangements. As of
December 31, 1998, the Company has entered into one
interest rate swap with a maturity of f ive years and
involved the exchange of variable rate payments for fixed
rate payments without the exchange of the underlying
principal amounts. In accordance with the terms of the
swap agreement, the Company pays 7.09% interest and
receives LIBOR plus 1.75% calculated on the notional
amount . The notional amount of the interest rate swap
was $5,000 at December 31, 1998. The Company con-
cluded that the swap effectively changed the variable
interest rate characteristics to a fixed rate for which the
present value of the cash flows are approximately the
same, and as a result, there is no adjustment to mark the
swap to market . Cash flows associated with the financial
instrument are classified consistent with the cash flows
from the transactions being hedged.

The remaining $15,000 under the revolving bank
credit facility provides for interest at the bank’s base rate
minus 25 basis points or, at the Company’s discretion,
other market-based rates. The Company has the option
to swap floating rate for fixed rate loans at the time of
drawdown. The drawdown period expires on July 1, 1999.
Any drawdowns may be paid over a term of up to sixty
months. Its availability is subject to a number of financial
covenants. Under this facility, the payment of dividends,

among other things, requires approval by the bank.
Substantially all assets of the Company are pledged as
security for the repayment of amounts drawn under this
credit facility. On a quarterly basis, the Company pays an
annual commitment fee equal to 0.125% of the daily
unused line of credit .

11. Employee Benefit Plans
In 1995, the Company adopted an employee stock

purchase plan (“ESP Plan”) under Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code. All full-time employees of the
Company and par t-time employees, as defined in the
ESP Plan, are eligible to participate in the ESP Plan. An
aggregate of 562,500 shares of common stock are
reserved for offering under the ESP Plan. Offerings are
made at the commencement of each calendar year and
must be purchased by the end of that calendar year. In
1997, 44,515 shares of common stock were purchased
at a price of $21.99 per share, as determined by the ESP
Plan, which approximates fair value. During 1998, 43,627
shares of common stock were purchased at a price of
$9.75 per share, as determined by the ESP Plan, which
approximates fair value.

Cer tain executives and key employees have been
granted options to purchase shares of common stock
under stock option plans adopted in 1994, 1995 and
1997. An aggregate of 326,087, 2,775,000 and 1,200,000
shares of common stock were reserved for issuance
under the 1994 Long-Term Incentive Share and Award Plan,
the 1995 Long-Term Incentive Share Award Plan and the
1997 Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan for
Employees (the “Plans”), respectively. The Plans provide
for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted shares, or other share based awards to
eligible employees and directors, as defined in the Plans.
Options granted under the Plans become exercisable in
varying amounts over periods of up to three years.

FASB 123 requires pro forma information regarding
net income and earnings per share as if the Company has
accounted for its employee stock options and warrants
granted subsequent to December 31, 1994 and shares of
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common stock purchased by employees in connection
with the ESP Plan (“equity awards”) under the fair value
method of FASB 123. The fair value of these equity
awards was estimated at the date of grant using a 
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions for 1996, 1997 and 1998,
respectively: risk-free interest rate of 5.17%, 5.90%, and
4.50%; expected volatility of 0.50, 0.50, and 0.60;
expected option life of one year from vesting and an
expected dividend yield of 0.0%.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated
fair value of the equity awards is amortized to expense
over the options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro
forma information is as follows:

1996 1997 1998

Pro forma net 
income (loss) $10,555 $11,777 $(13,092)

Pro forma basic earnings 
(loss) per share $ 0.85 $ 0.82 $ (0.89)

Because FASB 123 is applicable only to equity awards
granted subsequent to December 31, 1994, its pro
forma effect was not fully reflected until 1997.

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity, and related information for the years ended December 31, 1996 and
1997 follows:

1996 1997 1998

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Common Average Common Average Common Average

Stock Exercise Stock Exercise Stock Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 686,565 $ 6.13 1,088,221 $ 9.77 1,558,075 $19.77
Granted 484,575 14.64 710,931 31.54 2,083,256 10.87
Exercised (59,068) 6.14 (219,246) 7.78 (36,724) 9.76
Forfeited (23,851) 13.14 (21,831) 24.74 (142,448) 22.77

Outstanding at end of year 1,088,221 9.77 1,558,075 19.77 3,462,159 14.39

Exercisable at end of year 481,426 6.20 745,963 10.30 1,154,789 16.80

Weighted average fair value of options 
granted during the year $ 5.50 $12.15 $10.75

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 1998 are summarized as follows:

Outstanding Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Options at Remaining Exercise
Exercise Prices December 31, 1998 Contractual Life Price

$ .57 109,639 5.17 $ .57
$ 6.25 to $ 8.00 1,554,044 9.02 $ 7.32
$ 8.44 to $15.93 793,758 8.11 $14.59
$16.34 to $29.69 409,552 9.03 $18.78
$30.00 to $47.50 595,166 8.06 $32.15

$ .57 to $47.50 3,462,159 8.53 $14.39

12. Restructuring Charges
The Company recorded restructuring charges totaling

$7,126 during 1998. The restructuring charges consisted 
of writedowns of impaired long-lived assets of $4,510,
reductions in work force of $1,616 and wafer fabrication
facility shutdown and removal costs of $1,000 which are
expected to be completed in 1999. In connection with 

the impairment evaluation, the Company determined that
certain other equipment related to the conversion of the
new wafer fabrication facility has shor ter depreciable
lives. Accordingly, the Company accelerated depreciation
on these assets during the year for which the net effect
on income was approximately $2,656.
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Writedowns of Impaired Assets. The Company evaluated the on-going value of certain assets. Based upon this evalua-
tion, the Company plans to dispose of certain assets with a carrying amount of $4,635 and estimated the sales value, net
of related costs to sell, at $125. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $4,510, which consisted of the
following items:

Write-down of assets associated with the conversion of the new wafer fabrication 
facility from 4-inch to 6-inch wafers $2,149

Write-down of assets associated with the closure of the Company’s in-house 
assembly operations 1,004

Write-off of software, in connection with the Company’s on-going information 
systems improvements 842

Unused production assets previously used in the production of DBS LNB converter 
integrated circuits $ 515

Total write-down on impairment of long-lived assets $4,510

Reductions in Force. The Company recorded charges of $1,100 during the first quarter of 1998 and $516 during the
fourth quarter of 1998 associated with reductions in its workforce. The workforce reduction charges primarily consisted
of severance pay, extended medical coverage, and outplacement service costs for approximately 165 employees primarily
involved in the Company’s production operations. Approximately $1,049 of severance pay, extended medical coverage,
and outplacement service costs were paid through December 31, 1998 for the termination of 120 employees. The
remaining liability of $567 is expected to be paid during the first half of 1999.

Facility Shutdown and Removal Costs. The Company recorded charges of $1,000 associated with the shutdown and
removal of its existing wafer fabrication facility, which is expected to be completed in 1999.

13. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarter Ended

March 30, June 29, Sept . 28, Dec. 31, March 29, June 28, Sept. 27, Dec. 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 1997 1997 1997 1997 1998 1998 1998 1998

Net sales $22,860 $24,969 $26,727 $27,980 $18,785 $22,675 $22,041 $22,574
Cost of sales 12,321 13,159 13,688 16,925 12,068 14,565 21,758 17,838

Gross profit 10,539 11,810 13,039 11,055 6,717 8,110 283 4,736
Research and development 3,439 4,185 4,375 4,767 4,642 5,108 4,334 4,739
Selling and administrative 

expense 2,746 3,028 3,226 3,138 3,345 3,060 3,084 3,437
Restructuring charges 1,100 1,357 4,669

Operating income (loss) 4,354 4,597 5,438 3,150 (2,370) (58) (8,492) (8,109)
Interest income, net 561 1,003 833 831 656 570 560 511

Income (loss) before 
income taxes 4,915 5,600 6,271 3,981 (1,714) 512 (7,932) (7,598)

Provision (benefit) for 
income taxes(1) 1,745 1,988 2,310 (605) (643) 192 (2,975) (3,749)

Net income (loss) $ 3,170 $ 3,612 $ 3,961 $ 4,586 $ (1,071) $ 320 $ (4,957) $ (3,849)

Basic earnings (loss) 
per share $ 0.24 $ 0.25 $ 0.28 $ 0.31 $ (0.07) $ 0.02 $ (0.34) $ (0.26)

Diluted earnings (loss) 
per share $ 0.23 $ 0.24 $ 0.26 $ 0.30 $ (0.07) $ 0.02 $ (0.34) $ (0.26)

Market price per share 
of common stock:

High $ 37.68 $ 35.50 $ 54.25 $ 51.38 $ 33.81 $ 16.81 $ 21.00 $ 14.19
Low $ 24.00 $ 22.50 $ 30.50 $ 21.00 $ 13.19 $ 11.00 $ 7.81 $ 5.13

(1) The benefit for income taxes for the quarter ended December 31, 1997 resulted from a reduction in the valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets.

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I



14. Commitments and Contingencies
In March and April 1998, there were filed against 

the Company and cer tain of its officers and directors 
in the United States District Court for the District of
New Jersey seven proposed class action lawsuits (collec-
tively, the “Class Action Lawsuits”), captioned Assuncao
v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-917; Office and
Professional Employees International Union Local 153
Pension Fund v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-919; Kotler
v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-923; Gray v. Anadigics,
Inc., et al., No. 98-1337; Mirpuri v. Anadigics, Inc., et al.,
No. 98-1811; Grayson v. Rosenzweig, et al., No. 98-1688;
and Morgante v. Anadigics, Inc., et al., No. 98-2024. The
Complaints filed in the Class Action Lawsuits (each of
which names a combination of the following directors
and officers of the Company: Ronald Rosenzweig,
George Gilber t, Harry T. Rein, John F. Lyons, Charles
Huang, Javed Patel, Sheo Khetan and Robert Bayruns)
seek unspecified damages in connection with claims
under Sections 10(b) (and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and, as set for th in the Union Local 153, Kotler,
Gray and Mirpuri Complaints, claims alleging common
law fraud and negligent misrepresentation. The Complaints
allege that, as a result of certain material misstatements
and omissions made by the Company in connection with
its business, the price of the Company’s common stock
was ar tificially inflated during the proposed class periods.
The longest proposed class period alleged by the plain-
tiffs in the Class Action Lawsuits is the period from July
17, 1997 through January 30, 1998. On December 20,
1998, the United States District Court for the District of
New Jersey entered an Order consolidating the Class
Action Lawsuits into one action, captioned In re
Anadigics, Inc. Securities Litigation, No. 98-CV-917 (the
“Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit”), and appointing
Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Plaintiffs’ Counsel. The parties to
the Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit have jointly
requested the Cour t to extend to April 5, 1999 the
deadline by which plaintiffs must file their Amended
Consolidated Complaint . The Company is unable at this
time to assess the probable outcome of the
Consolidated Class Action Lawsuit or the materiality of
the risk of loss in connection therewith (given that none
of the original Complaints had alleged damages with any
particularity and the Amended Consolidated Complaint
has not yet been served).

On or about August 3, 1998, a shareholders derivative
lawsuit, captioned Deegan v. Rosenzweig, et al., No. 98-
CV-3640 (the “Derivative Lawsuit”), was filed in the
United States District Cour t for the District of New
Jersey against the Company (as nominal defendant) and
the following officers and directors thereof: Charles

Bur ton, Paul Bachow, Rober t Bayruns, Ronald
Rosenzweig, George Gilber t, John Lyons, Harry Rein,
Sheo Khetan, Javed Patel, Charles Huang and Phillip
Wallace. The Complaint in the Derivative Lawsuit alleges
claims, which are predicated upon the Class Action
Lawsuits, seeking damages, contribution, indemnification
and equitable relief. On October 28, 1998, the United
States District Cour t for the District of New Jersey
stayed the Derivative Lawsuit pending the earlier of 
(1) the disposition of any motion to dismiss the
Complaint (or any Consolidated Amended Complaint) in
the Class Action Lawsuits or (2) the commencement of
discovery in the Class Action Lawsuits. As a result, on
October 29, 1998, the Court administratively dismissed
the Derivative Lawsuit without prejudice. The Company
is unable at this time to assess the probable outcome of
the Derivative Lawsuit or the materiality of the risk of
loss in connection therewith ( given that the original
Complaint did not allege damages with any particularity
and no operative pleading presently exists).

The Company is also involved in other threatened and
pending legal proceedings arising in the course of the
Company’s business. The adverse outcome of any of
these other legal proceedings is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the results of operations or
financial condition of the Company.

At December 31, 1998, the Company had committed
to purchase approximately $10,000 of equipment and
furniture, and leasehold improvements during 1999.

15. Impact of Year 2000 (Unaudited)
The Year 2000 Issue is the result of computer pro-

grams being written using two digits rather than four to
define the applicable year. Any of the Company’s com-
puter programs or hardware that have date-sensitive
software or embedded chips may recognize a date using
“00” as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This
could result in a system failure or miscalculations causing
disruptions of operations, including, among other things,
a temporary inability to process transactions, send
invoices, or engage in similar normal business activities.

The Company has determined that it will need to
modify or replace significant portions of its software so
that its computer systems will function properly with
respect to dates in the year 2000 and beyond. The
Company presently believes that with modifications to
existing software and conversions to new software, the
Year 2000 issue will not pose significant operational
problems for its computer systems. However, if such
modifications and conversions are not made, or are not
completed timely, the Year 2000 issue could have a
material impact on the operations of the Company. The
Company has initiated formal communications with all of
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its signif icant suppliers, large customers and financial
institutions to ensure that those parties have appropriate
plans to remediate Year 2000 issues where their systems
interface with the Company’s systems or otherwise
impact its operations. The Company is assessing the
extent to which its operations are vulnerable should
those organizations fail to remediate properly their 
computer systems.

The Company’s comprehensive Year 2000 initiative is
being managed by a senior team of internal staff and 
outside consultants. The team’s activities are designed to
ensure that there is no adverse effect on the Company’s
core business operations and that transactions with 
customers, suppliers, and financial institutions are fully
supported. The Company is well under way with these
effor ts, which are scheduled to be completed in mid
1999. The total cost of the Year 2000 project is esti-
mated at $2,000 and is being funded through operating
cash flows. Of the total project cost, approximately 
one-half is attributable to the purchase of new hardware
and software, which will be capitalized. To date, the
Company has spent approximately $300 on hardware 
and software purchases and the remaining amount 

represents equipment purchases expected to be deliv-
ered and installed during the second quar ter of 1999.
The remaining one-half will primarily be for assessment
of the Year 2000 issue, development of a modification
plan, remediation and modifications to existing software
and will be expensed when incurred. To date, the
Company has incurred and expensed approximately
$200, primarily for assessment of the Year 2000 issue,
development of a modification plan, and initial remedia-
tion effor ts. The remaining amount is expected to be
expensed in the second quarter of 1999.

While the Company believes its effor ts will be 
adequate to address its Year 2000 concerns, there can
be no guarantee that the systems of other companies on
which the Company’s systems and operations rely will be
converted on a timely basis and will not have a material
effect on the Company. The Company has determined it
has no exposure to contingencies related to the Year
2000 issue for the products it has sold.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with
Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Not applicable.

40

A N A D I G I C S ,  I N C . 1 9 9 8  A N N U A L R E P O R T

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I



41

A N A D I G I C S ,  I N C . 1 9 9 8  A N N U A L R E P O R T

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the
Registrant

The information contained in the 1999 Proxy State-
ment under the heading “Information Regarding Directors
and Executive Officers” is incorporated herein by 
reference in response to this item.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information contained in the 1999 Proxy State-

ment under the heading “Compensation and Other Trans-
actions with Directors and Executive Officers” is
incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management

The information contained in the 1999 Proxy State-
ment under the heading “Principal Stockholders” 
and “Stock Ownership of Directors and Management” 
is incorporated herein by reference in response to 
this item.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions

The information contained in the 1999 Proxy State-
ment under the heading “Compensation and Other
Transactions with Directors and Executive Officers” 
is incorporated herein by reference in response to 
this item.

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I I I
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Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) 1. Financial Statements
Financial Statements are included in Item 8,
“Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data” as follows:

— Report of Independent Auditors
— Consolidated Balance Sheets—December

31, 1997 and 1998
— Consolidated Statements of Operations—

Years ended December 31, 1996, 1997, 
and 1998

— Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’
Equity—Years ended December 31, 1996,
1997, and 1998

— Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—
Years ended December 31, 1996, 1997, 
and 1998

— Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements—December 31, 1998

(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts. All other schedules for which pro-
vision is made in the applicable accounting
regulation of the Securities and Exchange
Commission are not required under the
related instructions or are inapplicable 
and therefore have been omitted.

(a) 3. Exhibit List

3.2 Form of Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of the Registrant . Filed as 
an exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration 
No. 33-89928), and incorporated herein 
by reference.

3.4 Form of Amended By-laws of the Registrant .
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 33-89928), and incorpo-
rated by reference.

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate. Filed as 
an exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 
33-89928), and incorporated herein by 
reference.

4.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreement .
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 33-89928), and incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

4.3 Schedule to Form of Registration Rights
Agreement . Filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-20783), and
incorporated herein by reference. 

4.4 Rights Agreement dated as of December 17,
1998 between the registrant and Chase Mellon
Shareholder Services L.L.C., as Rights Agent .
Filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s current
report on Form 8-K filed December 17,
1998, and incorporated herein by reference.
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9.1 Consent and Voting Agreement dated as of
February 28, 1994, executed in connection
with the issuance of Senior Series P Con-
vertible Preferred Stock. Filed as an exhibit
to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

9.2 Schedule of Consent and Voting
Agreements, which are substantially identical
to the Consent and Voting Agreement filed
as Exhibit 9.1. Filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

9.3 Consent and Voting Agreement dated as of
September 20, 1989, between the Registrant
and Ronald Rosenzweig. Filed as an exhibit
to the Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

9.4 Schedule of Consent and Voting
Agreements, which are substantially identical
to the Consent and Voting Agreement filed
as Exhibit 9.3. Filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.1 Form of 1995 Long-Term Incentive and
Share Award Plan. Filed as an exhibit to 
the Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.2 1994 Long-Term Incentive and Share Award
Plan. Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 33-89928), and incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

10.3 Employee Savings and Protection Plan. Filed 
as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 
33-89928), and incorporated herein by 
reference.

10.4 Form of Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Filed
as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 
33-89928), and incorporated herein by 
reference.

10.5 Lease Agreement between Mr. Bethel
Corporate Center and the Registrant dated
May 1, 1993. Filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Registration Statement on 
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.8 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of
February 28, 1994. Filed as an exhibit to 
the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-89928), and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.9 Right of First Refusal and Tag Along
Agreement dated as of February 28, 1994.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 33-89928), and incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

10.10 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement 
by and between First Union National Bank,
formerly known as First Fidelity Bank,
National Association dated January 25, 1996.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1995, and incorporated
herein by reference.

10.11 First Amendment, dated as of December 23,
1996, to the Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement, dated as of January 25, 1996,
between the Company and First Union
National Bank, formerly known as First
Fidelity Bank, National Association. Filed as
an exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement (Registration No. 333-20783),
and incorporated herein by reference.

10.12 Lease Agreement between United States
Land Resources, L.P. and the Company dated
as of April 26, 1996. Filed as an exhibit to
the Company’s Registration Statement
(Registration No. 333-20783), and incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

*23.1 Consent of Ernst and Young LLP.
*27.1 Financial Data Schedule.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On December 17, 1998, the Company filed a Rights
Agreement dated December 17, 1998 between the
Registrant and Chase Mellon Shareholder Services L.L.C.,
on Form 8-K . No other reports on Form 8-K were filed
during the fourth quarter of 1998.

*Filed herewith.

T H E C O M P A N Y P A R T I V
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has 

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 30th day of
March, 1999.

ANADIGICS, INC.

BY: /s/ Dr. Bami Bastani

Dr. Bami Bastani
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AND PRESIDENT

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

NAME TITLE DATE

/s/ Dr. Bami Bastani
Chief Executive Officer and President March 30, 1999
(Chief Executive Officer); Director

Dr. Bami Bastani

/s/ John F. Lyons
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 30, 1999
(Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

John F. Lyons

/s/ Ronald Rosenzweig Chairman of the Board of Directors March 30, 1999
Ronald Rosenzweig

/s/ George Gilbert Director March 30, 1999
George Gilbert

/s/ Charles Huang Director March 30, 1999
Charles Huang

/s/ Paul S. Bachow Director March 30, 1999
Paul S. Bachow

/s/ Charles Burton Director March 30, 1999
Charles Burton

/s/ David Fellows Director March 30, 1999
David Fellows

/s/ Bruns Grayson Director March 30, 1999
Bruns Grayson

/s/ Harry T. Rein Director March 30, 1999
Harry T. Rein

/s/ Lewis Solomon Director March 30, 1999
Lewis Solomon
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Schedule I I—Valuation and Qual i fy ing Accounts
Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of

Description of Period Expenses Deductions Period

(Dollars in thousands)

Year ended December 31, 1998:
Deducted from asset account:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 396 $ 4 $ (272)(1) $ 128
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 7,174 13,803 (12,947)(2) 8,030

Reserve for warranty claims 550 (246)(4) 304

Year ended December 31, 1997:
Deducted from asset account:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 340 $ 77 $ (21)(1) $ 396
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1,681 5,776 (283)(2) 7,174
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 10,831 — (10,831)(3) 0

Reserve for warranty claims 225 1,554 (1,229)(4) 550

Year ended December 31, 1996:
Deducted from asset account:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 482 $ 239 $ (381)(1) $ 340
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1,508 1,238 (1,065)(2) 1,681
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 16,170 — (5,339)(3) 10,831

Reserve for warranty claims 525 321 (621)(4) 225
(1) Uncollectible accounts written-off and adjustments to the allowance account .
(2) Inventory write-offs and adjustments to the reserve account .
(3) Benefit and/or recognition of deferred tax assets.
(4) Warranty expenses incurred and other adjustments to the reserve for warranty claims.

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of  Independent Audi tors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-89928) pertaining to
the ANADIGICS, Inc. Stock Option Plan, 1994 Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan, 1995 Long-Term Incentive
Share Award Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-32533) pertain-
ing to the ANADIGICS, Inc. 1997 Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan for Employees, of our report dated January
25, 1999, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of ANADIGICS, Inc. included in the Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 1998.

MetroPark, New Jersey
March 30, 1999
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C O R P O R A T E  I N F O R M A T I O N

Stock Listing: Common stock traded 
on Nasdaq National Market

Symbol: ANAD

C O R P O R A T E  O F F I C E

ANADIGICS, Inc.
Attn: Investor Relations
35 Technology Drive
Warren, NJ 07059
(908) 668-5000
(908) 668-5068 (fax)
e-mail: investinfo@anadigics.com

W E B  A D D R E S S

http://www.anadigics.com

T R A N S F E R  A G E N T  
A N D  R E G I S T R A R

ChaseMellon 
Shareholder Services
450 West 33rd Street
15th Floor
New York, NY 10001

A U D I T O R S

Ernst & Young LLP
Metropark
99 Wood Avenue South
P.O. Box 751
Iselin, NJ 08830-0471

A N N U A L  M E E T I N G

ANADIGICS Annual Meeting 
of Shareholders will be held 
on May 25, 1999 at 10:00 a.m. 
at the Somerset Hills Hotel, 
200 Liberty Corner Road, 
Warren, NJ 07059

E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R S

Bami Bastani
President, Chief Executive Off icer 
and Director

Ronald Rosenzweig
Chairman of the Board
and Director

Charles Huang
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Technical Off icer

John F. Lyons
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Off icer

Bruce Diamond
Senior Vice President, Operations

D I R E C T O R S

Paul Bachow
President of Bachow & 
Associates Inc.

David Fellows
President, Fellows Associates

Bruns Grayson
Managing General Partner Calvert Capital
Management Inc.

Harry Rein
Managing General Partner and Founder of 
Canaan Venture Partners

Lewis Solomon
Chairman of G&L Investments
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